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Hatsun Agro Product Lid. has aloays
kept the customers happy through
continuous froduct mmations,
fnding ils way mio the
kitchens and hearls of
fanulies across

South India.
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For moments that are beyond special
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HATSUN AGRO PRODUCT LTD

Hatsun . lgu' Product Lid. goes fo greal .’m{.'f/l' to make sur all ¥he caiis

are healthy and well looked aflex For arvnmal Inishartidry servwces iov lis
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HATSUN AGRO PRODUCT LTD

IVe make sune only the freshest of mulk goes into all sur products. Thats why we go syt ©
the farmens o procre mulk These ane @ound 5,249 Hatom Mk Bunks (HAMBs) covening
aver 10,000 enliages vesth eacl FEMB meevig ik from 3.2 lakh farmens aerda
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DATE: 31" July, 2014
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TIME: 11,00 A M.

VENUE;: P. Obul Reddy Hall,

Sri Thyaga Brahma Gana Sabha,
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SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE 15 hereby given that the Twenty Ninth Annual
Mecting of HATSUN AGRO PRODUCT
LIMITED will he held on Thursday, the 31* day of July, 2014
ar 1100 AM. ai P Obul Reddy Hall, Sr Thyags Bralima
Guna Sabha, Vani Mabal, GN,. Cheny Road, T Nagar,

Clhennai 600 017 to transact the following Dusiness

Generul

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. 1o receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2004, including
March, 2004, the

Statement of Profit & Loss for the yvear ended on that date

the audited Balance Sheet as at 31

and the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thercon

2. ‘Lo ratify and confirm the payment of interim dividends on
cquity shares for the financial year 20135-14

3. Tu appoint a Director in place of Shri. K.S. Thanarajan
who retites by rotation and being eligible, offers himsell for

re-appomument,
4. To appoint Auditors and hix thewr remuneration

SRESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Compames
Act, 2019 and the Rules made thereunder including uny
statutory modification(s] or re=enactment thereof far the time
being in loree), M7« S.R Batlibol & Associntes, LLE, Churtered
Accountants (Firm registration number 101049W) be and
are hereby re-appointed as the Auditors of the Company to
hold office from the conclimion of this Annual Genoral
Meeting to the conclusion of the thirty=second AGM of the
Company 10 be held in the year 2017 (subjeet to ratification
ol the appointment by the members at every AGM by
means of an Ordinary Resolution held after this AGM
on such remuneration as may be determined by the
Board of Directors in comsultation with the Auditors,
and thut such remuneration may be paid an a4 progressive
billing basis 1o be agreed berween the Auditors and the

Board of Directors.®
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. Appointment of Shri. Balasubramanian
Thenamuthan as an Independent Director

To consider and i thought fit, to pass with or without

modificationis), the following resolution  as  an

Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions ol Section
149, 152 and other applicable provisions, i any, of the
Companies Act. 2013 and the Rules made  thereander
including any  sututory  modification’s)  or  reeenactment
thereol for the time being in foree), read with Schedule TV 0
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Amicles of Association of the
Company, Shri. Balaubrunanian Thenamuthan, who was
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the
Board of Directors with effect from 25 January, 2014 and who
holds office up 10 the date of this Annual General Meeting 1n
rerms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, and in
respect of whom the Company has received i notce m wiiting
from a member under Section 160 of the Companies Act.
2013, Shri

Balusubiramanian Theonmuthan as # candidate for the offioe

agnifying  lus  intention 16 propos
of director, be and is hereby appointed a5 an Independent
Director of the Company 1o hald office for five consecutive

vears lor o term up o 31° March, 2019.*

6. Appointment of Shri. P Vaidysnathan as an
Independent Director

I consider and i thought ft, 10 pass with or without
modificanons, the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pussuat to the provisions of Section PR
152 and other appbeable provisions, i ary, of the Compaies Act,
13 and the Rules mude thereunder ncludmg any  smaton
modification’s) or reetsctment thereol for the time being in loree
reased with Schedule IV 1o the Compames Act, 2015 and the: Articles ol
Asseciation of the Company, Shr. FVudvanathan, Dieecior of the
Comparry and in respect of whom the Company has reecived a
notice in witing from a member under Section 160 ol the
Companies Act, 2013, signifyitg fis mtention 10 propose Shn
PVaichvanathan s o candicie for the office ol ditector, be and §
hereby appommed as an Independent Director of the Company
hald office fir live consecutive vears for # term up o 31° March,
219"

7. Appointment of Shri. N. Chandrasckaran as an
Independent Director

lo consider and if thought iy, w pass with or withow
rnodification’s, the filkonwing resaluson o w Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant 10 the provisions of Section 149
152 and other appheable provesons, i any of the Compraies Act
MY wnd the Rudes made thereunder Gochwding amy  stanory

modificaton’s) or re-tractment thereol for the time being i o



readd with Schiedhle IV 6 the Compames Act, 2015 and the Amickes
of Association of the Company, Stin. N Chandrselasa, Director

ol the Comprary and in respect of whom the Company has received
a notee mowmting from o member under Section 1600 of  the
Comprunes Act, 2013, sumifying bis mtention - propose Shn,
N_Chandrnsekarnn as o candicivte for the office of director, be and
i herehy appointed as an Independent Director of the Company
10 hold office for five consecutive veurs for s term up o 31° March.
2019."

8. Retirement of a Director

To congider and i thought fit, to pass with or withow

modificinonis), the following resolution a5 an  Ordinary
Resolution:

SRESOLVED ot to fill jor the e beg the vacaney caused I the
retirernent of Sht S Thiganjn, Diroctor who netires by rotation i the
Antnad Generad Mevting and docs notsook nesappomonent.™

9. Approval for fixation of remumeration of Cost Auditors

To conmder and if thought fit, w pass with or withour
modificanonts), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT purstant o the prosdsions of Section 148 and
uther appbcable prosasons, i any, of the Compearies Act, 2003 and
the Compames (Aucit and Auditors) Rules, 2011 (including any
statutory modifications) o re-cractment thereol, foe the tme being in
foreel, M/ STR & Associares, Cont Accountants (Firm Regeamtion
Number O00C29) appomted as the Cost Auditors by the Board of
Direetors off the Clampuany to conchct the audit of the cost rocomds of the
Company for the fmancal year ending Mach 31, 2015, be paid the
remuteraton amounting w Ra5.00.000/- (Rupees Five Laddis Only
excclucding appbeable o s out ol pocket expense, i sy ™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Dircetors ol
the Gompany be and s hereby anthonsed @ do all acts and take
all such steps as may be necessury. proper of expedient to give
elfect w this resolution.”
By order of the Boand
for HATSUN AGRO PRODUCT LIMITED
Sd/-
S.Chandrasekar
Company Secretary
Place: Chenmai
Dhiste: 25% June, 2014
Registervd Oflie:
Domaine, Door No. | 7204,
Rigjiv Gaanedhi Salai (OMR,
Kaurapakkam, Chennai 600 097
CIN: IO TN 1986010012747

NOTES:
I The Explanstory Sttement pursuant to Section 102 of the

Compuies Act, 2003, relating 10 special business 1o be transacted

the meoting, » annexed hereto

2 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOITE Al'THE
MEETING IS ENTTTLED TO APPOINT APROXY TOATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH
PROXY NEEDNOT BEAMEMEER OF THE COMPANY.

3. The msrarmens appostmg the prosy caby completed res be deposied
the muptered offiee of the Company ot least 88 hours befine the
Caommencement of the meetng A blank prosy foom b attaced,

4. Duning the period beginning 24 hours bedoee the time fised foe the
cornmencernent of the meeting wod enchigg with the concheson of the
miecting i member woukd be entitled o mspect the prrsdes locied at any
titme churmg the busines hours of the Compansy, provided that not less
thun three days of notee m wnting s gven w the Company

3, Members/ Proses should bring duly filled Anendance Ship sem

herewith o attend the meeting

6. The Register of Members amd the Share Thansder Books o the
Compiany will rernasin cesed from Gth August, 2014 0 Bth August, 2014
{both chrys mohuse) lor the purpose of Annual Geneml Meemng lor the
firwnesad vear 201514

7. The Register of Directors and Key Managenal Personnel and
170 o the

Companies Act, 2013, will be available for mspection by the

thetr  sharcholding,  muintained  under Section

members st the Annual General Meeung

. The relevant demils as requuired by Clause 49 of the Listing
Agrecment entered into with the Stock Exchanges, of persons
secking appointment/ re-appoimtment as Director, is provided in

the annexure.

9. Corporate Members mtending o send theirr authonserd
representitives (o attend the meeting are requested 1o send 1o the
Company, a certified true copy of the Bosrd Resolution authonsng
thetr representanve 1o anend and sore on thetr behall’ s the meeung

10. Members holding shares i dematenalised form are requested 1w
intimate all changes pertaining to their hank details, National Electronic
Clearmg Service (NECS)/ Flevtronie Cleanng Service (ECS! mundates,
nommnanons, power of anomey, change of address, change of name and
comail address, ete., (o theis Depesitory Participant only and not o the
Company's Regitrir and Share Tramsfer Agent (RTAL MY+ [ntegrated
Enverprises (Indha) Lamited (1ELL), Bangalore. Changes tmtimuted o
the Depository Participant will then be automatically reflected in the
Company’s records which wall help the Company and TEIL 10 provids

efficient and bener services,

e




11 Mernibers holfing shares in physical form are requested 1o send all
conrespondence with respect o the updation of their bank details,
manster of sharey, change of address, comenion of physical shires
into Demut form etc., to [EIL, Bangalore.

12. Members holding shares in physical form are requested 10
consider converting their holding to dematerialised form to
elimmare all nsks associated with physical shares and for case in
portfolic management. Members can  contact  exther  the
Company or [EIL, for assistance in this regard.

|3, Members may visit Company’s website: www.hutsun.com
and contact us ot e=mail; secretanal@batsun com

14, The Notice of the 29% AGM and Instructions for e-voting,
along with the Anendance Slip and Proxy Form, is being sent
to all members by Registered Post / Speed Post.

15 The Company is concerned about the environment and
utilizes the natural resources in i sustainable way. We request you
10 update your emuml address with your Depositary Participant of
RTA to enable us to send Annual Report, Notces and all other

communications via email.

16, Members who are holding shares in more than one folio
are requested w intimate to the Registrar and Share Tranlir
Agent, the details of all folio numbers for consolidaton mto a
single folio,

17. Reserve Bank of India has initiated NECS for credit of
dividend directly 10 the bank account of Members,
Members are requested to register their Bank Account
details (Core Banking Solutions enabled account number, 9
digit MICR and 1| digat IFS code), in respect of shares held
in dematerialised form with their respective Depository
Participants and in respect of shares held in physical torm

with 1EIL.

| 8. Members desining any mformation as regards the financial
staterments are requested to write to the Company at least seven
thays biefore the date of the meeting

19, Members are requested 10 check whether they have
encashed Dividend Warrants for the carhier years. If the
Dividend Warrants have become time-barred / lost, please
apply for revalidation / fresh dividend warrant before the
last dates indicated above:

2006407 Ar*e Y IO 2004 | ORAaT/00H
200700 2% 0102000 | OIS0 IR/ 117200
20708 % 2270072000 2/ g T L O]
PO 1o THAUS 2000 NN DA/ 00
o] 15% A/ 2000 Loy 21/08/2017
2000.11 0 ARSI ] Mr12rma W
200411 X" s LI/08720I0 o200
200102 P (R ELUEF UV 27000008 B oy
LAY AP 10/0n7 2012 177002019 2770072000
200213 DL WMz 211222009 olZlrmn
012:1) | Soatsams (T 3 B T W02 2N
VA S {110 AURITARS TS | BLJ0T 7 000 LG/ DM
WL 1500 /1072008 06/ 127000 1671173020
200314 T 0N IR ARSU TN (ORI UM

Dunng the firmncial year 201 3-14, an amount of R85, 184/- being
unclaimed dividend pertaning 1o the financial year 2005-06 and an
amount of Rs46,777/- being unclaimed matured deposits. both
principal and mrerest were trndéerred o lovestor Education and
Protection Fund TE&PE.

I terms of Seetion 2050 of the Compames (Amendment) Act,
1999, all dividend and depost wmounts, which remain unclimed
and unpiud for a period of seven years, will be ansferved o the
Inwvester Education & Protecton Fund TEEPF,

Ihe detuils of sharcholders who tuve not encashed their dmadend
sarrants are available in Company's website sww hatsur, oo,

EXPLANATORY  STATEMENT _ PURSUANT __ TO
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,

Irem No.3.

The Board, at its meeting beld on 23 January, 2014, appointed
Shri. Balssubramanian Thenamuthan as an Additional Director
of the Company wed 23 January, 2014 under the category of
Non-Exccutive and Independent Director, pursuant 1o Secuon
161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 102 ol the
Arucles ol Assocition of the Company:

Pursuant 1o the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies
Act, 2013, Shri. Balasubramanian Thenamuthan will hold
office only up to the date ol the ensuing Annual General
Meeting The Company has reccived notice in writing
under the provisions of Section 160 of the Companics Act,
2013 alongwith a deposit of Rs, 1,00,000/<, from a member
|D{ Shn
Thenamuthan lor the office of Independent Director, 1o be

proposing  the candidature Balasubramanian
appointed as such under the provisions of Section 149 of

the Compames Act, 2013,




The Board of Directors believes tat the asociation of Shii.
Bulassubramanun Thenamuthan with the Compary shall e
benehicial 1 the progress of the Company. Furthe: the Comypuany has
received fromm him, the reguired corsent letter and alw intimations
aned disclosumes rogquined under Secoon 164 s 149 0 the Cormpsinies
Act, 2005 readd with the Companes (Appomtment and Qualificanions of
Divectons) Rudes, 2004 sk by i chexbiersation w the effiet thust e meets
the enteria of Independence s provided i Section 1496) ol the
Comprmes Ao 20105,

The resolunon seeks the appeovad of members for the appomtument of
Shii Balssubiezranion Thersarmtu s an Independent Director of
the Camprany for five consecunive veais e aterm up o 31 Mauch, 20149,

The Board recormmends the resolution set forth in lierm Nod for the
appronal of the members.

No Directoz, Key Managenal Fersommel or their rebiatives excepie Shin
Bulssubirumanian Themamuthun b concerned or interested in the
Resolistion.

ItemNo. 6& 7

Pursuant 1o the provisions of Secton 149, 152, Schedule IV of the
Comparies Act, 2003 read wath Compamies (Appomtment and
Cuuhibcanon of Dwectors) Rales, 2014, it w proposed o iappoint Shin,
P Viddyanuthan and Sha. N Clandrsclkarn s Independent
Directons of the Company for five consecative years for a term up to
31" Mach, 2019,

The Compauny has recenved notice m witing under the proveaons of
Section 160 of the Companics Act. 2019 alongwith a depaosit of
Ra L 0000/, froen members proposmg the candidanoe of
aforementioned directons for the office of Independent Director: to be
appointed as sich under the provisions of Section 149 ol e
Compames Act, 2015,

The Board of Directors believes that the association of the aloresaid
Independent Directors with the Company shall be benefical o the
progress ol the Compuany. Further; the Compuy Tas reoeiverd lom
them, the required consent lerer and also mimations and disclosunes
requured under Section 164 and 1419 of the Compuames Act 2013
read with the Companies (Appointment and  Qualifications of
Directans) Rules, 2014 and abso declartion o0 the effocs that they mest
the criteria of Independence as provided i Section 14946 of the
Compunies Act, 2015,

The Board recommends the resolutions set forth in Ttemn No, 6.& 7 for
the approval of the members

No Director. Key Managerial Personned or their relatives except Shin,
B Vaicdyanathan and Sha. N Chandesekaran & concerned or
mierested m the Resoluton,

NOTVICTE TR SHAREFNCHHERS »

Item No.ti

Shre 8 Thuygarajun s 0 Non-Executive & Independent Davetor of
the Cornpany. He joined the Board of Directors of the Company in
Mary 2003, Shn. S. Thingarajan retines by rotation at the enmnng
AGM under the provisions of the erstwhile Coempamies Act, 1950 and
docs not seek reappointment owing 1o his health conditions
Accordingfy, Shiu S I hiagaragan vetires at this AGM and the Boand
has deaded not 1o Bl for the time being, the vacancy cansed due to his
retietenL

The Board recommends the resalution set forth in Tern No 8 for the
approsal of the members.

No Directog, Key Managenal PFersonnel or their relanves s concerned
or interested i the Resolution.

Item No.9

T Board, o the recommendation of the Audit Committee, Tus
appooned the appointment of M/« STR & Asocuutes, Cost
Acooantanty as the Cost Auditor 0 conduet the aodit of the cost
rocords of the Company for the financal vear ending Miwch 31,2015
A s remunerston of RaS00000/- Rupers Five Lakhs Only)
excludmg applicable wowes and our of pocket expenses, if any

In acvordance with the provisions of Section 148 o the Act read
with the Compamies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2010 the
remmneration payable 10 the Cost Auditors his to be ratified by the
shareholders of the Company.

The Board mevomimends the resolution set forth i lern Noo 9 for the
approval of the membens.

No Director. Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives s
concerned or mterested in the Resolution.

By order of the Bowd
for HATSUN AGRO PRODUCT LIMITED
Sd/-
S.Chandrasekar
Clompany Seeretary
Mace: Chenmm
Divees 25" fune, 2014
Registered Office:
Domame, Door No. | /20A,
Rapv Gandhi Salm (OMR ),
Karmpakkam, Chennai 600 097,

CIN: LISASTN I96PLCO12747

.
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS BEING APPOINTED / RE-APPOINTED

The brief resume of cach of the Directors who are proposed 1o be appointed/ re-appointed 15 given below:

Numse of the Director

Shrv B Themnuthan

Shee KS Thanarajan

Shrr P Vadyanathan

Shrei. N, Ohamdrsarkaron

Direcrar Tdentification
Number (DIN

01009714

0001 2208

Q9RO

6409

Date of Rink

1 7% November, 1060

20" March, 1949

29" Octoher, 1947

29 Mureh, 1144

Date of Appoistment

20 Jusuunry, 2004

20% June, 1955

290 Murch, 1'%

20" Marrch, 2005

Prulile

He bholds & Masters Dogres i

Clommmmoation wnd

Journalism and bhas carried out

uh Intrnaive iudy ol
Newspaper  Management  in
Cardifi = University,  Unired
Kingdots. He haa $ docades of
expeelence (0 Journalism. He
in the Munaging Director of
Karnutaka News Pubifications
which
Dhaily

Private Lamaind,
Twmil

wutakde Tamil Nady

pubilishes 2

Post
Leonomics. He o the Joim

He iv » Graduae in
Managing Director of the
Company. He b in-<hargs
ol the day-to-diy operutions
af the Dairy Divivian. He
has held yanoms execunve
positioms during Wi career

spanning over 4 decades

He n 4 Fellow Member ol
The [nstitute of Chartered
Acovananm of Todia and an
Assoctate Member of The
Trvntatune ul Cotnpany
Secretaries of India & The
Inunizure of Con snd Works
India. He

12 yrars ol

Necountants of
buas more

expenence in the

than
Finanee

lunctions

”? " o

Enginoering Geaduate

Mechunle ol
with
thart & decardes of
He  ha

R UiV

maorre

expenenye heid

Tarious Mty

Huring his carers. He la wlsa

on the Board of srpuied

Crompanies

Directorship in
other Campanies

| Karnatska
News Publications Py Lid

| Bconomist Clommuiihe st
Lad

L Sups Shoer Indusines Pyt
lad

S Edelweiss Fokin
Inaurance Company Lid
i Viavs Bank
3 bmbasy

Life

Property
“*'n'lu;nrnrn:- Pyt Lad

6. Angel Equity Managenwn
Pvt. Lad

Vil Techuologies

Engineering Serviees I\t
Lad
2. Famas Dynenes Lad

1. Valmet Chennad Pat Lad

Sharcholding
m the Company

Nil

He holds 10.33,000 Equity
Shares in the Company as
3% March, 2004

Nil

Nil

Instructions for e-voting

The complete detail of the instructions for e-voting is annexed to this notice.

’

Dear Member,

Subject: Instructions for e-voting

Registered Folio no, / DP ID no. / Client ID no.

Number of shares held

Pursuant 1o the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Management and
Administraton) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to offer e-voting facility, additionally, to the members 1o cast their voies
clectronically on all resolutions set forth in the Notice convening the 29" Annual General Meeting to be held on Thursday, the
$1* day of July, 2014 at 11.00 AM. [IST.. The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limiter

(INSDL) 10 provide the e-voting facility.

The e-voung facility i availuble at the link https:/ /www,evoting. nsdl.com
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v » &8 "

NOTICE TOSHAREHOLIDERS » 5

The electromic votng particulars dre set out below:

EVEN Eaoting Event Number User 1D ’ Passward

100416 ' }

Please read the instructions printed below belore exercising vour vote

I'hese details and mstructons form an miegral pan of the Notice for the Annual General Meeting to be held on 317 July, 2014.
Steps for e-voting

I Open the mternet browser and tvpe the llowing URL: https:/ / www,evoting, nsdl.com

2 Chick on Shareholder Login

I you are alveady registered with NSDL for e-voting, then you can use your existing User 1D and Password for Lagin

LN vou are logging for the st time, plesse enter the User 1D and Password provided in this document.

5. Password change menu appears. Change the password with new password of your choice with mmimum 8 digits/ characters or
combination thereof. Note the new password. [t is strongly reconumendid not to share your password with any other person and
tuke utmost care to keep your password confidential

. Home page of e-Voting opens. Click on e<Voting: Active Evoting Cveles

7. Select "EVEN" of Hasun Agro Produer Limited

H, Now you are ready for e-Voting as Cast Voue page opens

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit™ and also “Caonfirm™ when prompted

[0, Upon conlirmanon, the message “Vore cast successiully™ will be displaved

L Onee you have yoted on the resolutions, you will not be allowed o modify your vote

I2. Tor the votes to be cotwidered valid, the institutional sharcholders (e, other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required o
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevam Board Resolution/ Authority Letter eti. together with attested specimen
signature of the duly auwthornzed signatoryoes) who are authorized 10 vote, 1w the Scrutimizer through e-muil at
exdhnnapal@gmail.com with a copy marked to gvoting@usdl co in

13, In case of any quenes, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and oovoting user munual for
Sharcholders availuble at the Dosvnloads section of wwwevoting nsdl.cam

1L You can also updare your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which tay be used for sending

luture commumication/s

General Instructions:

I. The esvoung period commences on 25* July, 2014 (9.530 AM.IST) and ends on 27" July, 2014 (6,00 M. IST). During this
period, the shareholders of the Company holding shares either in physical farm or in dematerialised form, as on the cut-off date
record dave) of 27" June, 2014, may cast their votes electronically. The e-vating module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting

thereafier, Once the vote on a resolution is cant by the sharcholder: the shurcholder shall not be allowed 1o change it subsequently

2. Smee the Company is required 10 provide members the facility 1o cast their vote by electronie means, sharcholders of the
Company. holding shares cither in physical form or in demuterialised form, as on the cut-off date (record date] of 277 June, 2014

and not casting their vote electronically, may only cast their vote at the Annual General Merting

3. Shri. S.Dhanapal, Serior Parter of M/s S Dhanapal & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries Membership No FCS
b881) has been appointed as the Serutinizer 1o serutinize the e-votng process in a fuur and trnsparent manner,

§. The Serunnizer shall, within a petiod of oot exceeding three working days from the conclusion of the e-voting period. unlock

the votes in the presence of at least two witnesses, not in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the

votes cast in Bavour of or against it, if any forthwith o the Chairman of the Company:




l hie YOung ll'..'l." ol *|l.n|‘l|~|](ll! thall be m [lrnv[urﬂ]aln £}
thewr shares of the pad-up equaity share capital of e

Company as on 27" June, 2014

fi. The results declaved wlong with the Scrutinizer’s Re [Mar1
stall be placed an the Company’s website wiwwwhat L0t
md on the website of the NSDL within two duys ol the peissing
of the resolutions at the 20 Annual General Meeting of the

Company on 11 July, 2014, and commumented 1o the Stock

|.'-.n huuu

All documents referred to i the accompanyving Notee and i
Statement pursuant too Section 102 of the Con Patres \ct
005, will be avatlable for in pection at the Registered €Hfiee
ol the Company durmg business hours on all working duvs up
to the date of declaration of the results of the 29" Al

Gieneral Meetimg ol the ( oy

By order ol the Board
for HATSUN AGRO PRODUCT LIMITED
NARE
S.Chandrasekar
( CHTIPRITY SecTeLary
Place: Chetina
Dt 25 '»|m N4
Registered Oflice
Damaine, Door Na. | /20A
Rajiv Gandhi Salsi OMR
Kurapakkam, Chennal GO0 097
CIN: LIMOOTN 196 PLO01274




Resdi

The Members,

[he Directoes have great pleasure in presenting their 29 Directors’

Repart wlong with the audited statement o accounts for the francial
voar ended 31 March, 2014

I. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Ihe financial results of the Company for the vear ended 31

Muarch, 2004 1 summarised below:

(R, im lakhs)
CURRENT YEAR |PREVIOUS YEAR
l MARCH. 2014 MARCH, 2013
Kesrrnwe Fvwn CETULC . Ty 249,154 18 o R
Onhier Incosne Bl LI
Tl Jowvworw b LW AR NaEs2m
Oyperuting Expenchiure Ik I R 20072451

Prott bctoee Inmeress, Thoc

_ Dheperciistion & Ammoesiition 1HH24, 66

151080 |
—ny

Finuese Costs 13t Lans |y L0 R
Depirectanim mond Marmnssson hAYN 2031 .87
Profit bediore Lsers B st gu So7H 0
Fax Exgienmes M08 L2
Net Pousfia o the Yem | HIGRST ), 400,
lNu:rlh-.(n Hewani 111510 | Nk 00
o Presvan Sow

\eewnen Mvaidbdbe dor Appropras F1.28% 05 V2 M

| APPROPRIATIONS

Toermitn Dividendd on Fapuity Shues 25020 | 07
Lan v TPaders 157055 S0 Y2
Lestader 10 Gieneral Reserse HGB6 | M
Habancr carvied wi Bodaoce St T L1512

2. PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

Dunng the year, your Company registered o totl income ol
R 25020299 Laakhs representing an merease of 15% over that of the
presaous vear: Your Comypeany registered o net profit of Raf), 16857
Laskhs, as compared 10 previous year et profic off Re4.466.89 Lakhs,
atinerease of 5%,

During the Fnuncil vesr under roview, your Company regstered o
healthy gromth in Mk, Tee creams, Curd and other Milk Prodiety
over that of the previous vear

I'ho inerease in the profitability s due to fivourable export market
conditions, increase in prices of dairy ngredienis across the world,
the availubility of milk and the effoctive cost control measumes

taken by the Company;

THRELTTORS REMOWRT » 0

During the yean the Income-tax officials carmed out a search it the
regstered  office, some factories and aso the residence of
whole-time dircctors of the Company on March 11, 2004, The
Company has submitted the required details sought for and
continue to co-operate with the Income-tax departmenit.

3. DIVIDEND

During the yeur your Company has declared and paid 2 interim
dividends waling Re2.50/- per equity share (250%) on equity
shure capital

The toal cash outflow on account of dividend exchding dividend tax
for the year 2013- 1L, would sregite 1o Re2 692 29 | akhs resulting
m a payout of 33% of the ner profits of the Company:

During the financial year 2013-14, an amount of R85, 184/- being
anclamed dividend permining w the financial year 200606 was
transferred to lnvestor Edueation and Protection Fund (TE&PF,

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Compamy proposes 0 trunsder Ro816.86 Lakhs 10 General
Reserve out ol the wmount ailuble for appropriations and an
amount of Rs7.316.99 Lakhs s proposed 10 be retamed i the Profit
and Loss Account.

5. EXPORTS

Ihe value of exports during the yeur wis Re2063846 Lakhs
wpresenung $.28% of ner revenue from operatons. Your
Company is a Net Foreign Exchange Farner

6. FUTURE PLAN

During the yeur under review, your Company acquired o Carte

Feed Plant in Karur, Tamdl Nadu und the dairy business of M/«

Jyothi Dary Private Lamied, Andhra Prudesh. Consequent w the

same, the major thrust areas in the current financial year wonld be
in strengthening the operations and increasing the presence in
\ndhra Pradesh and also the Cantle Feed business in the domestic
market. This will help your Company 1o strengthen its presence

and enabile it to maintain s keaderdip position,

7. DIRECTORS
Appointments/ Inductions
The  Board has  appointed  Shri.  Balasubramanian

Thenamuthan as an additional director of the Company w.ef
23" Janvary, 2014 under the category of Non-Executive and

Independent Director.

hi—




The Board of Directors proposes to seck your support in

cotfirming  the  appointment  of - Mr Balusubrumanan
Themumuthan as an Independent Director of the Company for five
consevumve years fora term up o 31 March, 20149 not liable 1o retire

bw rotation.

Re-appointments

As per provisons of the Comparies Act, 2015, Shn, KOS Thusesgan
s Babde 10 tetiee by rotation at the ersuing Annal General Meeting and

b eligble, offers himself” for re-appomment. The Boardd of Direcrons
ocormanencks His roappostioent.

Independent Directors

Section 149 of the Compuanies Act. 2015 prosackes for appointment ol
Inclependent Directors. The Independent Divectons shall hold offic
for @ werm of up w five consecntve years on the Board of o
Company and shull be eligible for re-appointment on pissing a
spocial resolution by the shircholders of the Compuany.

Further, Sub section 11} of Section 149 of the Companies Act,
2003 states that no Independent Divector ahall be eligable for morne
thun two consecutive terms of five vears: Also, Sub section (15)
states thast the provisions ol retirement Ly sotation shall non apply

o such Independent Dhirectors.

Our Non-Fxecutive & Independent Direetons were appormted as
directons lable o retire by motation under the provssons of the
erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, The Boare ol Disvetons propeoses (o
of Shn. P Vaidyanathan and Shae N
Chandrasekaran as Independent Directons of the Company o five

wek  appomniment

coteecutive years loea term up to 31° March, 2019

Reti and Resi .
Durmg the year; Shn. BS. Mant, Non-Executve Dincctor resagned
fronn the Boand wed 257 Janwary, 2011 due o health reasons, Also.
Shr S Thiagarsjan, Non-Executive & Independent Divetor s lubde
e by yowtion st the ensung Aol General Meenng and does not
seek reappointment owing to Tis health conitions.

The Boand apprecianed the valuable services rendered and
both Shrn, BS Mumt el Shn. S

Thingarman over the years, which has proved mvaluable and

comtnbutions made Iy

helped the Company ummensely.
8. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act. 2013 (to the extent
notified) and the Companes Act, 1956 (1o the extent applicable
and guidehnes 1ssucd by SEBL, and based on the representations
mochved fom the opeating management, the Duwectors: hereby

condirm that

i) in the preparation of the financial statements for the year
201314, the apphcable Accounting Standurds as prescribed by
the Companies (Accounting Stundirds) Rules, 2006, have been

followed and there are no materinl departurnes;

i) they hawe selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistenmtly and made fudgmenis and estimates thar are
rensatble pd prodent so as o give o troe aod Biir view ol the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the linancial yea

and of the profit of the Company for the financial year;

i) they have tken proper and sufficient care 1o the best ol
their knowledpe and ability for the maintenance ol adequate
acconmting records in accordance with the provisions of e
Compumes Act, 2005 (1o the extent notified) and Companics
Act, 1956 (w the extent applicablel. They confivm thar there
are adequate systent antd controls for saleguirding the assets
of the Company and for preventng and dereening fraud and

ather irregularities,

v, they have prepared the Annual Accounts on o going

concern basis

9. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Your Company has comphied with all mandarory provisions of

Corporate Governancr as prescribed under the Listing

Agreement entered into with the Stock Exelanges

Corporiate Governance Report and Management Discussion

ancd Analysis forms part of this Report
10. FIXED DEPOSITS

The wtal amount of fixed deposits (excludmg imerest on
Cumulative Deposits) from public outstanding woud uncladmed s
at 31 March, 2014, was Re249 Lakhs out of which a sum o
Re. 1.88  Lakhs Fixed/Non

Cumulative Deposits and Rs0.61 Lakhs represents 2 accounts

represents 7 secounty ol

of Cumulative Deposits

During the fnancial year 2003< 14, an amount of Re46,777/-
bemng unclamed matored deposits bath prinopal wnd meres

were translerred o Investor Education and Protection Fund

1E&PTE
11. FINANCE

Dunng the year, your Company had to maintuin its borrowimgs
to run the operationy. However, vour Company has taken car
to ensure that such of the Company borrowings are obitained w

Very Hlllll"‘lll\ CTRies



12. DEPOSITORY SYSTEM
ot

ectronie form and the Cormprasy b eszablisher cotmectivity with bothy

e dre awsoe, yory' Compary's shuuaes e tmcable n
e Pheprostones i<, Natioral Secommies Deposiony Linised NS aned
Central Depostory Servaces (Inchi) Larnited (CDSLL In view of thu
schitiages off the Depositiry Svsten, the memmbers are socquesed o avadl

of the Bty of dermameralsaion of the Compruy s shanes

13. AUDITORS & AUDITORS' REPORT
M/s SR

statutony aechtors of the Cormgrany setiee o the ensaing Armional General

Hatliboi & Assoczates LLE Chiartered Accountants th
Mecting and hone confirmed  therr elighiling. mdependence and
wallingness 10 sccept othoe, i resappamiod. Your Directors recorm e d
the appotntment of M/< SR Rulibor & Asociates LLP Chartenyd
Accoumntnty, Cherga oo Stinmory. Audinoes of the Commpeury s the
ey Anoual CGenersl Meeting 1o hold office from the concliseon of
this AGM w0 the conchsson of the 52 AGN, subijoet s ratification of

the appeentrment by members at every AGM held ailter this AGM

Explination m Audmons” Renoods

a) Pomt Now o) of Antiesure 1o thie Aucitors” Report

Having regaud 10 the Comgruny's expluation s regunds (s preration
of o centralized treasury funcoon and mone fully described i note 40
ofF the Tnanciad sttetmnetits, e mpor? that the Compeany M id frssely

revd on whort Loy b P hambs b purchese cortun foed assety

gt Ri 7.890. 14 lofhs

I he o armpany has o contmabsed reasary imenon where all the 1erm
locas mnd ather barmowmes i addition o the cash genented fom
aperutions we pooked through common bank accounts (o optimally
use fimds and rochice the mierest cows w0 the Company The
Company obtians loans from banke which ntherently permit the

lxns 10 he wed interchangeably for Jong-terms and shom-term
II”qlN‘-

Certan long term Joans appliod for dunng Febonure/Manch 2014,
coubd be dravn only durng My /e 2014, svhibeh would ediminae

the mosmatch fully: Most of  the shon erm loans wirth mieress

achvantage bove been i the natore of Betng molled over longe ferm

14. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Toscustrual relavons moall the units and branches of vour Ch ORI

resnsined] condial snd peacetil throughout the yeas

15. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Puarsuant 10 the prostsions of Section 21720 of the Conmpanies A

14956 read with the Cormprumes | Pvuculus of- Erployees) Rules, 1975

v Details of the employess employed throughout the year amd

drawmg remuncraton which i the aggregaie exceeds Rupees

Sexty Lkl o more per anoum, duving the financial vear

Me Sunon O Shen  Me RS Thananyan

el o

Plant Operamion Maragng Dhrecten

PG Feoooomes
(R S LAV 95
Hatneriu

| Y i x nHne

Nile \1..“.:,('

i None of the ermployees ervaploved Jor a pan of the ool yeas wio i
reerpt o seronmersition W aoy peort ol thit yeur, whichy, in the pgeregza
exceeds Rupees Five Lakl per month, durmg te el yeu

it None of the emplovers ewopt Monuggng Do o Executiv
Direvwn emnployed throwghonr the limanctal sear or part thereof
nhersell or her spoose

hold by himsel dong with i

dependemt children, more than two per cent ol the equity

shures of the ( A

16, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORFPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

Phe purticulors ds preseribed under section 2070100 of the
Companies Act, 1956 read wath the Compuimies (Disclomure of
Parncolars in the Repory off Board of Dhirectors! Rules, 1988, an

wt out inan Avnexute W this Repon.
17. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company has Been extending elp s villiages where oo
plants are Jocated, as part of our Corporate Social Responslality
Financial assssuince was extended 1or creanne aod developing
bude infrastructure like Lying of ronds, water pipe connection

dust bin for Panchavar ete. Yo (v"llllr.lll\ ha also TGS ol

free eve camps ar Edapads, Rastpuram and Mechiern Villag

S




18. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors wash (o convey thear approcunon to bosness sesocites for
their support and contribution chning the yeur The Disectons would sk
fikas w0 thaanks the ermployees, members, costomens, Tenkers, Gamess ad
Channel parmers for the continued support gven: by them 1o the
Company and thetr confidence reposed in the management. The
Diroctons spprocian: and valoe the contrbutions made by every memiber
of Hutsn

fior and an behult’ of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

R.G. Chandramogan

Chalrman & Managiog Director

Place: Clienug

Diates 25 June, 20114

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
Particulars pursuant w0 Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the
Report of Board of Directon, Rudes, 1958

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

A.POWER & FUEL X514 2002-1%

CONSUMPTION

1. Electricity

a) Purchased

Uity S3.055010 0T

Towad Amonnt (Ra. 351982 4 LT TS T

R/ U (Ra G 86

b) Throwgh Diesel Genevation

Cuanuty of heset commmmedd L | B6A 457 S AL
[ Cois 50153 M T

Tomal Aot (Ra 102824210 679,175

Cont/ U (Fxchading Overhend

and Deprecionon 1TES 159

Unamn per Litre of Dhesed Chl 115 299

2. Firewood

Quantity (Kg 11,291 4549 BHEL270

Tortal Ammenatst [Rs 2 3580, 1 440 1004 Wi

\wernge Rt (Ra/Kg 349 LI

3. Coal

Quuuntity (Kg |7.209.1 18 28342541

ot Aot [Rs 0 | 1006 132,380,124

Averugr Rate Re/Kg A48 |47

B. CONSUMPTION PER UNIT

OF PRODUCTS LE PER

LITRE OF MILK

Electricity (Kwh)

Milk 0029 00050

Cund 4,193 0177

FAT Producs (Buses/Cpeam/ Gihee 735 L

Salid Non EAT SN Pyochoen

(NGl Pomder) i (T RY,

Tee Crenm 0,712 L

Firewoods (Kes)

Adilk 001 0

Clurd 152 nom

FXL Products Buanter/ Cresen/ Glee (1150 e

Salied Noa FAT SNF Products

Al e LIN) ] o

Loe Clrvarn (124 (M

Coal @?)

Milk 0 e

Curd 0010 o

FAL Products  Butter / Crean/ Ciher (L521 (15%4

Solid Nor EXT SNF) Prochscrs

Milk Fowdden 07 (0312

loe Cream s (044




RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

L. Specific Areas in which R&D is being carried out by
the Company

4 Process Development

i) Conducting of Somatic Cell Counter Test to detect
animal udder health,

i ATP Bioluminescence testing to improve product
safery and shell life.

i Installation of Eco Milk Analyzers at various

chilhing/collection  centres o ensure  scenrate  and

reliable testing of Fat/SNF content in the milk supplied,
iv: Installanon of Hardening Tunnel for quick hardening
of lee creams 1o improve lee cream quility,

v Developed world class fruin preparations, fruit toppings,
chocolate toppings and in-house chocolute coatings recipes
lor Tee eream stick bars and lee cream cakes

it I the process of developing new bnternational standare
recipes for e creams, sorbets, yoghurt lee creams and
extrmded lee eream products.

vill Process Tmprovement is underway lor mix preparations
and processing lor enhancing product quality. stability and
food safiet

b Product Diversilication

¢ Quality enhancement (o achieve International Standarde

New
mstruments like 1 1CP-OES Cost (Inductively Coupled
Emission

detection of trace metals with focus on heavy metals, the

d' Assurance on Food Safery: Installution of

Plasma-Optical Spectroscopy)  used  lor
control of which will go long way in assuring safety of milk
& milk products,

2 Gas Chromarography used for detection ol traces of
major Pesticides & other harmful volatile chemicals in
milk, milk products, water ete,

3 UV CGuarry « 60 Spectrophotometer for detection of
metals, amino-acids, vituming ote,, which can help m
snproving the nurritive value of milk & milk produets,

As mentioned in the note below under Expenditure on R&D,
expendinures incurred on R&D are merged with appropriate
expenditureZcapital accounts.

2. Benefits derived

Continuous upgradation of the quality of produces his
resulted in better acceptance of the products by all classes

ol consnmeoers.

3. Future plan of action

More importance will be given on product / process
development /7 innovation, to bring down cost without

compromusing - on - product  quality  and w0 achieve
mnternatonal standards in quality and taste.

4. Expenditure on R & D*

! Capital < Nil

(b Revurring Nil

« Total N\l

() Totul R & D Expenditure

s i Y of Towd] Turnover - Nil

* The expendimires incurred on R&D wre merged with the
appropriste expenditure/capital accounts.
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND
INNNOVATION

1. Efforts Made
The Company hay undertaken efforts 1o absorh the best
avallable  technology  for  processing  of  milk  and

manufacturing milk related products like replacement of
existing reciprocating compressor with seroll compressor In
the refrigeration unit of our Bulk Coolers, VFD instillation
for scroll compressor and also energy  purchase  from
Windmill

2. Benelits

Absorption of the best weehnology reflects i the Company s

products, which are dlearly  differentinted  from s
competitors and its processes that consstently deliver more
with less expenditure. Due 1o the measures taken above,
there were considerable improvement in compressor efficiency

coupled with reduction i power comsumption and power cost.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(R in lakhs)
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
PARTICULARS 11 MARCH. 201 | 317 MARCH, 2014
Forvum Exchasge Karnings SOy 19
CIFNabie of lmpeom LA 15672
Expeanbtine i formgn currency fano7 SR 1]
Dndcdend podid b feign curreney 2n 0T

loe and on beball of e Bowrd of Directors
Sd/-
R.G.
Clusdroun & Muruging Director
Place: Chenmai
Diatez 25" June, 2014




EoRBOEATE GOVERNANCE

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Your Comprury & cormnitted 10 the hghest stanckods of  megay

mnsuarency and accoumtabality scross all leveds of thie crundsation int the
conchoet of its bosiess It acknowdedes the mporte of - good
componte governanes it curying ot i corporale mission. of
ALCOESS I8

Board ol

Directors, matagement and emplovess commit themselves o

creanmg longsterm value 1o 1is aakeholders Our

erounded i our vidue sywstem. The Company's

serve the best interest of the investing publi individually and
as o team. Your Directors perceive their role as a trustec o the

stakehiolders i particulior wnd the society at L

Yourr Cormpany will contime 10 [0cus 1 mesournces, strengths amd

strategies 10 achieve it visan ol Drand butdding,  maxmsing
gakeholders retum and developing people w0 deliver the same
whiile uphiolding the core vitlues of excellence, miegnty n~|-~|u|hili«\
uriity el uncerstending, whiich we fundamentids o U runmg of the

Company’s busiones

Your Comprany has o strong legocy of Ly, wansparent aned ethocal
EOAVETTIANCE  PRICDCes Your Compu s ulu,u--l a Code ol
Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel Bostly
these codes are available on the Company’s website Your
Company keeps its corporiate  Qovermanee policies  under
constianl with  best

teview  to conform,  where appheable

wraetices and prnciples
| | |

Your Compary & in compliance with the requirements ol the
guidelines on Corporate Covernance stipalated under Clanse 19

of the Listing Agreement entered in 1o with the Siock Exchanges

I1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

i Ason 31* Maurd, 2014, the Comprany haed seven Directons with lour
Na-kxecuwe and  Independent Divectors. The Chairmin X
Maaging Director is an Executive and Promoter Direewor: The
composinon of the Board & in conformity with Clause 49 of th

| asting Agreement entered o with the Stock Fachaangges

i Shei. R.G.Chandramogan, Managmg Directos and Shn
C Satlvan, Exeeutive Director are relittives i terms ol Section
1771 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rutles
made thereumder. None of the other Directors are related (0

each othet

i Neome of the Directors on the Board are Members i more than
() crsrumitiees or act s Chatrrman of more thean fve conuittess scros
all ormpraries t which be s a divetor e D Rrectons bunyve dischosec) o the
Commpsarty abvout the oenmittes positions they oocupy m other compsie

aned Terve notifierd chesres s and when they take place,

v The mames and catemies of the Directors an the Bourel the
stwsckmnee st Boaord Meetungs hodd cring the year and the parnber of
Diectorships and Cormines ladrmnshipe/ Membesships held by
lercins Dl

then  m other

Cusirmaesd g/ Membersbips of Boord Cormmmess mchake ooy Audin and

Conmpaumes an N

Slunehokders/Trnessons Gaevunce Comutiens

[ [ T i [

G OUTANTIRANMON AN I Prowcwntes . ‘ \ .
CIIATALAN & MANAGING DIRETOR Exevumr Dhrecwor S YES Nl | il N
S THANARAIAN 7
JOINT MANAGING DIRECTTON Fowrcutae Dirrstin H G Vs _ Nl Ni ‘ N Nl
| == — + 4 —_— 4 + - .
CAATHSAS Promnicecss ) ‘ "
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR Faccutive Diger i L ‘ Yis Nil Ni Nil
PVALIAANATHIAN Now Farrune & Nn YES d I | Nil
LIBEL TOR Lo brgennderse Director 1
STHIANGARAJAN Noor Exeouw & W " ) N Nil Nil ‘ Nil Nl
DR Ttscdegaetudent Pheecun
N CHANDIASEKARAN Naty- Favevuniryr & ft NO) ’ Nl | Nil Nil
IHREATION Tnedependent Phrocos |
- — 4 u
WSMNANT Noo Fary e & s N\ N N
IHRELCTTOR Tndepencens Dwoctor N | ‘ YES i |
I THENAMUTHAN ¢ o Esecutne & ‘
PHRECTTOR i

Incepersdens Direcns

| N il | | Nl Nil

* Nowgwe 5 VLS A ppershed an e Alibanl [ A u LN



& The Boad has met 8 (eight) times during the year and the i
between two mevtingy did not exoeed four monthe. The  said
Meetings were held on 307 My, 2018, 29 July, 2013, 13* August,
2003, 4" September, 2013, 19° September, 2013, 30" Octobser,
2005, 13" December, 2013 and 23" January, 2014, The necessary

(UOTLIT Wis present lor ull the meetings.

None of the Not-Executive Ditectons hase any material pecuniarn
redationship or transictions with the Compeany

At The mingmem mlormation is recquired under Ammesare - 1A of
Clawse 49 of dhwe Lating Agrvernent s made malibde w the boand

The Bowrd hus complete aooes 10 all informution. pertaining o the
Compury Trteralia, the following information s regulady provided
t0 the Board, whenever appheable and marenally sgnificant, exther as
a part ol the agenda papess well in advance of the Boase soeetings o
tubiedins the course of the Bosd merting or tabled befoee the appropeiae
Caormmitioes of the Boared,

= Aneal Operating plans & budgets and any upcates thereol

= Capital budgets and any upcates thereol

= Quarterly resuls of the Company, operatng divisons anel bosines
segments.

~Minuwes of the mectings of  Audit Commee and  othe
Comminees of the Board

= The informaton on reeritment and remonention of senjor officers
just beleny the Board lesed, incudhog the sppointment or nemonal of
Chied Fasananl Officer and Company Secretary:

- Masterially inpoctint show ciause, dermandd, prosecution notioes and
penalty notices.

- Fatal or seriows accidents, dangeous occurences, any matenial
effluent or pollution problems.

= Any material default in finuncial obligations w and by the Company,
ar substantial non-payment for goods sald by the € ampany

= Any issue, which invohves possible public or product Tabifiry clams
of subsanual e, incloding any judgment or order which, iy
have passed strictures on the conduct of the Company or taken an
adverse view regarding another enterprise thit can have negative
imphcations on the Company.

= Details of any joint venture ar collaboration agreement,

- Transactions that involve substantial peyment towards goocwill,
hrand equity or intellectual property;

- Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions. Any
sgnificant development in human resources/industnial relations
from like signing of wage agreement, implementution  of
woluntary retirement scherme el

i &aas. 2020202020200

= Sale of matenal nature, of investmens, subsiduines, assers,
which s notin the normal course of business.

- Quunrterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps
taken by the management w it the rsks of adverse
exchange mte movernent, il mawerial.

- Non-comphance of any regulatory, satutory namre or lisung
requirements and shircholders service such as nospavment of
chivacdened, delay in shase trainsfer, o

The Boand lus established procedures 1 enable the Board 1o
periodically review compliance reports of all Lws applicalie 10 e
Campary, prepared by the Compuny as well as sieps wmken by the
Compuny o rectfy mstances of not-compliances

Equity Shares Held By Non-Executive Directors

Nane of the Non-Executive Directors hold shares i the Company as
on 31 Miarch, 2014

Risk Management

The Company has cstablished ot sk gssessment el
mumusanon  proceduns, which are rovewed by the Board
penodically. The Company lus o stoucture in place 1o identfe ad
mitigate the vanous risks that would be faced 1 it from ume 1o
time. The risks are reviewed periodically, new risks i any, are
ientified. assessed, and cantrol measures are designed w put

in place fixed timeline for mitigating the risk

IL AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audiv Committoe plays an important role in overseeing the
miernal contol and the financinl reporting sywem of the
Company. The Company hus an independent audit committer
constituted i line with the provisions of Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges read with Secnon
177 of the Companiex Act, 2013,

The Audit Commuttee compnises of three members ol the
Board, all of whom are Non-Executive and Independen
Directors. They are Shri. P Vaidvanathan, who is a Fellow
member ol the Institute of Charered Accountans of Tndi as s
Charmuan, Shn. 8. Thisgarajan and Shri. Balssubrasmanian
henamuthan. All the members of the Comminee hae
excellent inancial and acconming knowledge. The Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Commiteer,

The Committee met 5 ifive) nmes during the yenr on 300 May,
2005, 15" August, 2013, 4% September, 20013, 30 October,
2015 and 23" Janary, 2014

The time gap between any two meetings was less than four

months, Necessary quorum was present for all the meetings,



P\ hmrsattun Inedependem Tuasrrnan 5 5
S llagarsan hdegendent Mesiber ' 2
RS \Luy* Idepencent Member > ‘
B Thermrruiiboa™ Incdepenedent Member

* Resgoaed i) 2100 2004
O il el of Sie Commmtbersn 2500201 1 i the Fiarnd N bt kst v 25 Foouuary
mid

The inenons of the Audit Commuinee include the olloswing:

- Superviing of the Comprany’s financal roponting proces and the
dachosure of s Bancial wiformason w0 ensare tae the fiancal
stteroent is coreet, sulficient and credibile.

« Recommending w the Board, the appomiment, me-appomtment
and, i required, the replacement or remmoval ol the statutory auditors
andd the fcition of sudit fees

= Approval of payment o statatory anditors for wy other services
rendered by the statutory auditons.

- Reviewing, with the musgenent, e wuuwed Froncd suderments
befome submmssion 1o the Bogre for approval, with parmicubi reference e

A Maners rogquaned 1o be included m the Directors Responstaitiny
Staternent 10 be meludod m the Board's oepaort i erms of Secoon 154 of
the Comprarnes Act, 2015

A Chianges, il sy, in sccounting policies and practices and
reswsors or the sarme.

A Mujor secounting entries inuolving estiates Tuserd on the
exertise of judiement by the narugement,

A Sygnifwcant adjustments made in the fmanoml  satements
arsing out of aodit findings

+ Comphance with bstmg and other legal requurements relaung
to financial statements.

* Disclosure of uny related panty tomsacoons

A Qualifications i the drft audit report,
- Reviewingg, with the management, the quantery fmancal statements
before subnission o the Board for approval,
- Reviewng with the munngement, the statement of  uses /
application of funds, raised through an isue (public tsue, Aghes
issue, preferentinl wssue, e1c,) the statement of funds utilised for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/notice and the repont submitted by the monitoring
agency monitonng the utilisation of proceeds of a public or
nghts issue, and makig approprate recommendations to
the Board to take up steps in this matter.

- Reviewing, with the munagement, performance of statutory and
mternal auditors, and adequacy of the mwernal control

AVsLems

- Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, il any,
including the structure of the termal audit department,
salfing and seniorty of the official heading the depariment,
reparting structure coverage and fregquency ol internul aodit,

« Discussion with internal auditors on anv significam

findings and follow up thereon.

- Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the
iternal auditors intn maners where there s suspected frand or
irregularity or o failure of internal control svstems of a material
satare and reporting the matter to the Board,

- Discussion  with  stwiators  auditors  before  the  audit

commences, about the nature and scope af andit as well

as post-audit discussion to ascertain any arca of concern.

- To look into the reasons for substantisl delaults in the

payment o the depositors, debemure holders, sharcholders

m cave of non-payment of declired dividends) and
creditors,
- To review the lunctioning of the Whistle Blower

medhanism.

- Carrying out any other function as is mentioned i the

termy of relerence of the Audiy Commitiee

I'he Audit Committer is empowered to

= Investigate any aotivity within its terms ol reference,

= Seck mtormation from any emplovee.

- Ohtin outside legal or ather professional advice.

< Secure wiendunce of outsiders with relevant expertise, il it
conmiders necessary,

I'he Company has systems in place o ensure that the Audit
Committie reviews:

« Management discusson and anulysis of Branciad condition and
results of operations,

- Statement of significant reluted party tansactions (us defined Iy
the andit committer |, submitted by the management.

« Managernent ketters / letters of internad contmol weadmeses isaed |y the
starcmory achitors.

= Interval audit reports relating o internal control weaknesses

« The appointment, removal and terms ol remuneration of
the Chief Internal Auditoers shall be subject to review by the

Audit Commiteee,




v NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE (FORMERLY REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE)
The Nomimnaton and Remuneration  Commitier  formerdy

Remuneration Commitiee) comprises of three members of the
Board, all of
IDhrectors. They are Shri. P! Viddvanathan (Chairmun), Shri. S,
Ihe

whom are NoneExccutive and  Independent
Phiagarajan and Shri, Balsubramanian Thenamutlan

Comparny Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Comminee

I'he role of the Remunerwon Commminee

2 To identily persons who are qualified 10 become directors

and who may be appomted m semior management in

nccordance with the eriterin lnid down

b To recommend 1o the Board the appoinmment and remonal of
such identified persons

o) To carry out evaluation of every director’s performaunc

d To formulate the eriteria for determining qualifications,
positve attnbute, and independence of direcror

! To formulate a policy relating 1o renmineration for directors,
key managerial personnel and other employvees

The Committee has met 2 (two, times during the financial year
on 30 May, 2013 and 23

recommended

January, 2014, The Commuttee
remuneration of  all  Executive

20035

imncrease  in

Directors wed  1* September and  recommended

resappointment of  Managing  Director and Joint Munnging
Director foe u lirther period of 5 vears at their meeting held on

30" May, 2013 and 23" January, 2014 respectively,

& — —
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Note: All the Executive Ditectors are covered under th
Company’s Leave Encushment Policy and Group Gratuity
Scheme along with the other employers of  the Cormpuny
Contribution o Gratuity i based on the actuarial valuation
made on an overall Company basty and henee individual

higures for the directors are not available

Compensation Philosophy in respect of Non-Executive
Directors

The objective ol the Compensation Philosophy is to attract
and retain hgh calibre mdividuals and monvate them towards
the achicvement of exceptionnd performance that enhances

the value of the Company.

lee ol

Thousand only) s beng pud to all Non-Executive Threctors

At prosent & sitting R«.20000/« (Rupees Twenny

for attending the Board mecting Also, a sitting fee of
Rs5,000/- Rupees Five Thousand Only) is being paid 10

attend the commutee mectings held after 13" August, 2013
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V. SHAREHOLDERS'/INVESTORS’
COMMITTEE

GRIEVANCE

e Corgransy s Shivholders'/frnveston” Grevnee Comenios ol the
Boand of Dinctors 10 bk o the mdressal of  complunts of
sharcholders Zimestory such as trsder or cedit of - shares,

nor-reccipt of dividend / nonces/ snmual reports, et

The Shareholdens' Tivenors Groevanoe Commities comprises ol
Bourd. nameh Shr S
Chairmanl, Shri. P Viidyanathan and Shri. K-S Thamnjus, two

three members ol the Thingaragn
of whom are NomeExeouive and Indepenent Directors The
Caompriury Secrotary acts as the Secretiry ol the Compmner.

During the your, 4 Sour, meetings of the € oonmitier were hedd on 307

Mirc 2013, 13" Auust, 2013, 30" Octobaor, 2015 and 23 Jawary, 004,

Indepenedent

 Duareriaz | |

| S Phsguesjunt

1 Vadyvuriatlan Indeprenbem 1 Metrdes

: e

KS Tismarugan Foaav e Verrdaer

Ihe Committee supensises the mechanion  Jor rechressal ol
Jureholders Zimvestors'  grievances and - ensures cordinl prvestor
relations. The Carmmittee takes care of the folloavinge muotters:

- Rechressal ol Sharcholders ZTinveston” complaints ke oansder of
shares,  nog-recept ol annual report,  non-re vipt ol declared
dividend etc.

- Serutinsise the pedormunce of the Regstar & Share Iruuder
Agent and reeommends measures for overall irnprovement ol the
ueality ol MTVIOE
- Arw aliiee] mustter(ss out of and ineidentil o these functons aned T
here in above specifically provided foe
Detatls off Cornplaings rovciver] during the yeir
Niumher of cotrplivnty receaved om mvesions - 7
Number of complaints resolved - 7

Number of complaints rernaining unesolved and penchng - Nil

AN | } Ay

RECHIVED A
KEDIRESSED

FRLTRENA
[HE YEAR

Comegsidetioe resarding destut 7geneeal |

Carvsprmdence regurding nosancerpe ol liire
certificate, tander/ tamanimion of e

e licdarion ol dividend warrants / noo-eecepe of
l divadend searrarm/ satiis of dividessd paymment

Compliance Officer

e Nane and destwnstion of the Compliance Officer of’ the Compuany:
M S. Cliandisekas, Company Seamuury & Conpliace: Officer
Dierrmine. Door Ne | 720, Raiv Gandhi Sala (OMR ),

Kasrmpealam, Chermai 600 0597

Phiote Now < 00 1082450 2

FoaNo  0014044-24501422

el 11 sooetanali@ hamsin oo

V1. OTHER COMMITTEES

A. SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE

‘The Share Trander Committer comyprises of three memben ol the
Besind maunely Shii. RG Chandmmegan (Chairmiin), Shri, KS
Phawmafan and Shri. P Vaidyanathar. The Cotgeuny Secnuny aces i

the Secrewary of the Committes
The Cormmutioe sakes core of the Sllowimg nsstiees:
Transer/ T vissson/Slit/Sub-divison/C otsohdanon of shares
« Issue of duplicue shire coriicies

- Regisraion of Fower of Atiorneys, Protete Letiers ol RO |

o strnikar other docutnents

- Dyvrmsnerabsanon/ Remmaterialisaion of duurs

Praedier of Jn.m-..m-;mu*uluulnui-drmlmllmull stypnalazed arme,
pronacied all the documents an saliel sl conmplete in all respecs
Number of Shitre ' Trnders perding as on 31 Miuch, 2014 - Nl
During the vear the Comumnee mer 13 {thirreen) tmes on the
following dates namely, 19% Apil, 2015, 29 April, 20138, 37 May
S01%. 25 May, 2013, 8% Jubyg 2013, 19 Joly 2013, 2% Repiembret
2014, W Neaember 2019, 18" December, 2015, 17 Jnuary, 2014
18 Febmury, 2014, 18% March, 2014 and 267 Miarchy, 2014

B. SUB-COMMITTEE

The Sub-Commitiee comprises of four members of  the Board,
Shn. K.S Shri. R.Ge

Chandramogan, Shri. C. Sathyan and Shr. Balasubramanan

namely | hanarajan  (Chadrman
Ihenamuthan. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary

ol the Commitee
The Compmes looks afier the following

- T review the funds poston ol the Compeny, bty 1oories
reqquired fe the purpose of Dusaness, nesotiae wnd fmafise the ferms of
Durrowvirags with thie knders, approse borrowings look Il s repayenis
and o to ke loans when there is surplos money available in hand.

. Reviewing, with the management, the risk mistagement p slicy
ol the Compuuny, with particulias reference wo:
a) oversee the operation of an enterprise-wide nisk - management

SVSLeTT




b resiesy, analvee sl recommend the policy, framewaork, stristey
and method 1 be used by the Company to manage nsks or threars;
o review with management the corporate pedormanece in the arcas
aof Jegal nsks and  crss managements and
i adentifs reviews and asses the likedibood and magritode of the
mmpact of matenal evens on the Company and 10 secommiend
mcastres 1o avoicl ar it risks

Io excrcise generally all such powery and 1o do all such
acts and things as the Board of Divectors may delegate from
e to time
During the vear, the Conunittes et 13 thivteen) times on the
following dates on 4" April, 2003, 17" Apnl, 2015, 2% July, 2014,
F3Y August, 2005, 10% Ocober, 2014, 28% Ociober, 2013, 9
Newembier, 2013 27" November, 2019, 29" December, 2015, 11"
Janmary, 2004, 19% Febnury, 2004, 18% March, 2004 and 26%
March, 2014,

C. CORE COMMITTEE

I'he Core Comnuttee for implementation of SEBI (Prohibition
ol Insider Trading) Regulations comprises of three members
of the Board namely, Shr. R.G. Chandramogan (Chairman),
Shrie. KOS, Thanaragun and Shri. C. Sathyan. The Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committes

During the year the Committee met once on 23" Januury,
2014,

Company during the year

DL CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Lo e o Section 135 of the ( annparies Act, 2003, your Company

Ihere were no cases involving insider trading in the

has  corstituted Clorporate Clommtioe

Soetal - Resspowsibiliny
the Board

Viddyanathan (Cludrman), Shrd. KS Thaueajan and Shri. (

comprang of three membens of namely, Shr. I!

Sithvare The Cludrman of the Commurtee s Non-Executive and
Independent Directoe The Commpany Secretiry acts i the Secretury
ol the Cornpitter

I'he Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is formed to
carry out the following duties

0l To tormulate and recommend o the Board, a Corporate
Sociul Responsibility Policy, indicating the activities to be
undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VT of
Companes Act, 2013

Activities relating to:

il eradicating  hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting
preventive health care and sanitaton and making available safe
drnnking water:

(i) promoting education, including special education and

employment  enhancing  vocanon  skills  especially

children, women, eldedy and the differently  abled an
livelihood enhancement projects

(i) promoung gender equality, empowenng women, setting u
homes ane hostels for women wod orphans; seting up old ag
homes, day care centres and such other facilities for semo
citezens and measures for reducing inegualities fced by sociall

and econamically backward groups

W) oensurmng  environmental  sustiunability,. ecologics

balance, protection ol Nora and faang, animal welfian

agrotorestry,  conservation  of  natural  resources an

maintaining quality ol soil, air and water:

N I”l“l'l non ol lhl“llll.ll |I"l||-ll:l" an .llll' lll'lll"' nmu lllll"l
restorstion of butldings and sites of historical importane
and waorks of art, setting up public libraries, promotion an
development of rraditional arts and handierafis;

vii measures for the benelit of armed forces, veterans, wa
widhows and their dependants

vill trsining 10 promote raral sports,  natonally recognise
sparts, paralympic sports and Olympie spors:

viil) contnbution to the Prime Minister's National Reliel Fan
ar any other fund set up by the Central Government fo
soco-ccononmuc development and rehel and wellire ol th
Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other hackwar
| l.l\sc'w, nunoniaes .m(I WoNnen;

ix) contnbutions or lunds provided (o techimology ineulsio
located within acadermic imstitutnons which are approved by th
Central Government;

x) rural development projects

b To recomumend the amount ol "\llt'lllllllllt 1 b ineurres
on the scovines referred o i clause ag; and

¢ To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy o

Company from tme 1 ume




VII. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
(i) Annual General Meeting
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(ii) Extra-Ordinary General Meeting

During the fnancial year 2011212, an Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting of the Company was held on 12" March, 2012 (o
consider and approve capitilisation of free reserves for 1sue
of bonus shares

There was no Extru-Ordinary General Meeting of  the
Company held during the year.

(iii) Special Resolutions

At the Annual General Meeting of the Gompany held on 2
September, 2011, the fullowing 2 [twa) Special Resolutions
were passed:

| Sub-division ol Equity Shares

2. Alteration of Arucles of Associanon of the Company,

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
10™ August, 2012, | (one) Special Resoluton for approval for
raising the ceiling limit for total foreign investment in the
Company was passed

At an Extra-Ordinory General Meeting of the Company
120 March, 2012, the following 4 Special
Resolutions were passed :

held  on

| Alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company
to enable reclassification of shares.

2. Reclussification of the Authorised Share Capital and
Alteration of the Memorandum of  Association of the
Company

Articles ol

Company upon reclassification of  Authorised Share

3. Alteration of the Association ol the
Clapital

1. Alteration of the Articles of Association of the
Company to autharise Board of Directors to Capitalise

Reserves of the Company,

(iv) Postal Ballot

There were no circurmstances necessitating the Company o seck the
approval of its members through a Postal Ballos e required under the
provisions of Section 192A ol the Compuatties Act, 1956,

VIIl. DISCLOSURES

i) ‘There are no materially sgnificant related party transacnons of the
Compary which luse potential conflict with the interests of the
Comprary at large.

i) ‘The Company has complicd with all the requirement of
regulatory anthonities. No penalties/strictures were imposed on the
Company by BSE Limited, where the shanes of the Comparry are
listed ar by SEBI or by any ather statutory authority on any oatter
related to capital market during the bast three years cwept in the year
2013-14, a compounding novee was issued by Reserve Bank of India
and levied o Compounding Fee of Re1.20.0007- for the delay in
reporting of inward remittances received from & person resident
outside India, by 4 10 5 days with regard 10 1ssue and allotment of
6% Unsecured Compuborily Convertible Debentures during the
year 2008-04,

il The Company has flfiled the following  nocmandaory
pequirements as presribedd in Amnesure 1D o the Clase 49 of the
Listing Agreement entered m o with the Stock Exchanges

W The Compuny has st up a Nonmaton and Remuneration
Cornmittee, detuils ol whtich huse been given curfier in this Report.

1 Whistle-Rloser Pulicy

The Company has adopted w Whiste-Blower Policy and his
established pecessary mechanien through which emplovee and
bhusiness associates may report unethical business practices at work
place withoot the fesr of repnsal, The Company has set up a chrect
contact initiative under which all employees/business associates Tune
direet acvess 10 the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee. The “"Whistle
Blower Protecton Policy™ ammes e

- Allow and enwcournge employers and busines associates 1o brng (o
the management’s notice concerns abour suspected uncthical
behaviour, malpractice, wrongful conduct, faud, violstion of
policies etc.

- Ensure timely and conststent onganisstional response

- Build and strengthen a culture of mansparency and tast

« Provacke protection agamst victimisation,

v, Share Capital Reconalianon Andit

A qualificd pructicing Company Secretary carmied out share capital
uinddit 10 reconcile the wtal admitted equity dhare capiial with the
National Securities Depesitory Limited NSDL) and the Central




Depository Services (Indin) Limned (CDSL and the total ssued
and fisted equity shue capital The shuare capitd reconciliation audit
report confirms that the wtal ssued/ paid-up capital is i agroement
with the wial mumber of shures i plysical form and the o number
ol dematerinlised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

vl Code of Coanduct

I'he Board has luid down a Code of Conduer for its Members
and Senior Management Personnel af the Company. The
Code of Conduct s available on the website of the Company,
wwwhagsuncom  All Board  Members Semor

Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with

and

the Code of Conduct.

he CEO has affivmed that this Code of Conduct has been
complied by all the Board Members and Senor Management
Personnel.

vt Cloche Sor Prevention of Troacker Trauding Practices

In compliance with the SEBL Prevention of  Insider Trading
Regulanons, the Company has msttuted i comprehensive Code of
The code Ly down
guidelines, which advises them on procedures 10 be followed and

Conduct for Ity sorvgrernent and  staff

disclosures 10 be mude, while dealing with shures of the Company
and cautioning them ol the consequences of violations, Drealings
in Cormparry’s shires by the Bosrd Members amd Senior Managerent
Ienonnel have been reparted w the Cormtittee peniodically

il Disclosure of  accounting  treatment in preparation of
fmancial sttements

e Gompany has followed the guidelines of accountng
standards kud down by the Tnsutute of Chartered Accountants
of India (TCAT in preparation of its financial statements,

vt CEO & CFO Certificanon

CEO and CFO certificanion of the financial statements for the year
& enclosed and forms past of this sepore

IX. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Ihe Company has its own website and all vital informations
relatmg 1o the Company and its performance including quarterly
results, quartery shareholding pattern are posted on that website,

namely wwwhatsun.com

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual resulty of the Company
are published in leading English and Vernacular newspapers like
The Fmancial  Expres/The Hindu  (Eoglshl and  The
Hincu/Maalai Sudar [Tamil).

Management Discussion and Analysis have been included and
torms part ol thiv Annual Report.

REMNORT ONCUOIRMORATE GOV TERNANCE DS

X. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Date < 31% July, 2014

e : 1LOOAM.

Venue P Obal Reddy Hall, Se Tl Brahoma Gana Sablu,
Vani Mahal, I Nagar, Chetina 600 017

As required under Clase STV ol e Listing Agreement wit

the  Stuwk Directors seckin

appointment/re-appomument ot the ensumng Anoual - Gener:

Exchanges,  parbenlars  of

Meating (AGM) are wiven in the Annexure 1o the Notice of th
AGM 10 be held on 31 July, 2014,

Finaneial Cadendur
Fioancal Year 1* Apnl 1o 31° March

For the year endled 31° March 2014, pesults were swmmounced an

First Quartes COLEY August, 2005

Half Year - 430° Oxcaober, 2013
Phird Qusarnes 29 sy, 2014

Annual ¢ T May 2014

For the yeur endhng 31* Mach, 2005 results wall be announced as follow

First Qusaney within 45 s fror e end of first quarer
Half Yeaur withiin 45 dovs o the end o half” vear
hird Quarer within 43 days from the end of thard quaner
Annual within 60 chys from the end of fimancal yea

(ii) Date of Book Closure/Record Date

Ihe dane of book chosure & as mentioned m the Notice of the AGA
1, from 6% August 2014 10 8" August, 2014 (both days inclusive
(iii) Dividend Payment Date

During the vears 2 (twol Interim Dividends were declured Iy
Board of Directors

The details of dividend pavment date are us follows:

N Newembeer
013

".""‘_I.luu.uv ’
i}

(iv) Listing on Stock Exchanges

At present, the Equity Shares of the Compuny are listed on BS)
Lamiited (BSE) sned Natioosal Stock Fxchange of Tndia Limited (NSE
The annual hsong fee for the fimanaal year 201 4-15 has been paid

P Octoher, 2018 129 Novernbes, X013

20 Jatanry, 2014 ¥ Febrwary, 2004

(v) Stock Code
ISIN N INEA73BO1045
BSE < 531551

NSE (weed 20th une, 2014) : HATSUN




April 2015 114.95 850 246,992 19622 68 114422
Muy 2013 1400 100,00 2196502 20,445 62 1945120
June 2013 1M4.75 11605 204 565 19,860.19 18467 11
July 2013 168.95 127 00 16,569 20,3514 19, 126,42
Auigust 2019 15195 117,55 776,548 14,564 20 174407
September 2013 150,00 124,50 10,407 20,739464 I, 16613
Outober 2013 THLOO 126,53 129,580 21,205.44 19,264,72
Neovember 2013 204 00 16100 7%2.711 J1.321.53 20,137 67
December 2013 JU4.50 17100 110,200 2148574 20 565 70
January 2014 253.9% 16313 #2500 21, 100.66 90,341.78
Febeuary 2014 325,00 292,55 2,950,512 21,1441.31 19,963.12
March 2014 S0n 00 204 00 294,204 22467.21 20,2055

(vii) Performance Of Hatsun Share Price In Comparison With BSE Sensex

CARLE (0 PERPORMANCE OF TIATSUN SFIARE PRICT IS CONTESRES RS W ESE DESHEN

d ¢ oo
2200001 00y

25000 waee BSE Sensex
Ao 200,04 e Hatsun Share Price
) AN
2000000 150 00
/ 10000
190000
v 50.00
1800000 0.00
nZononnne ==
£E22253558%8%
T E 2.2 93 S0
" . T . ,‘
(wil) Registranr snd Shawe Tromsdir Agent

As per the requirement of Securities and Fachange Board of India, M/s. Integrated Enterprises (India; Limited have been appomted as the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent to take care of all works related 1o Share Registry. The contact details of the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent are @ven below:

M/« INTEGRATED ENTERPRISES (INDIA) LIMITED,

30, Ramana Residency; 4* Cross, Sarnpigee Rosd, Malleswarsun,

Bangalore 560 003, Tel: (9] < 080 - 23460815 - 818

Fioe (9] - (60 - 23460819 | F-mait: glim@ssolcom



Al commmumications relating to share tansfers, share certificates, change of address, dividends ant any other query relating to shares shoald
be addressed 10 the above Regastrar and Share Transfer Agent

(ix) Share Transfer System

e share wmanders in phyvacal form are presently processed and the share cerificates are remamed within the stipulated time, subject o the

documents being clear inall pesperts. The wansder of shires in physicad maode is approved by the Share Trsder Commuttec.

[x) Distribution of Shareholding

SHARESHELD | NOOFFOLIOS / SHAREHOLDERS  NO,OF FOLIOS / SHAREHOLDERS 4 | NO OF SHARES | SHARE HOLDING )

o 2 LN L] Y, M4 LLLLS
1)« AN | 05 W (L
Nl . 0 Wil .27 5711 0o
W00 00 A 1w LN LR} P
Ll i W 1.9% 47 .07 0N
{0 M 120 197 e 0.1u
) < M) | 488 20,32 5,107 672 2H9
0 - 10000 13 am | 02545 O45
OUN) ] & ubone 4l b ih HOY 157 50 G5 M
Toeal V67 I F00.01) 107 641 GAl ‘ e
CATEAORY NOLOF FOLIOS / SHAREHOLDERS NOLOF SHARES HELD SHARFHOLDING ®w
- |
Promoten n L IRE RIS 4 un ‘
Ehroctoms s thear relathyes ") LAS2 100 158
Botdies Corpsrat an 3396226 1.4
NRI IR SHm il 143
Uither $HH Hol 19| 14487
Total 3,075 107,691,648 100,00

(xd) Dematerialisation of shares

About 96.73% of the shares ane being hedd m dermatermalzed form as a0 317 March, 214

| | - LX) {IN] ) J 4 200 1w 1814 N 54,249 3, 204) (0001 0.05 003
. /. 7 11 - X0 ] 217 Al [ 0.97 . 28 | K 2835 13,80 [ W i ool oos | {103 ‘
I | 200 - o i 1{TR) [t | "l-.. 21 ' 35 [ |g_.-o,-’ 15711 0 nul‘ AW |
- - ‘
Wi <M . e W, - | 12 | - 1RO (A U L oo LR LA
| - ” St
) <5 1) 1] J [ 0N 173 L9 N0 20007 }7.2007 Rl um M
6 500 « 100 ") A | W 14 i M 1.9 17.5900 1749 186 AR ol (L1t | 18
+ 4 + il 4 A
LM« NN N Wah | A8 B LA 2952 | A28, 400 (Vo3 N LIOT 672 170 19| 289
+ +
H IO - L0 1] ] 143 Los | 130 ' WY 500 63505 | 0254514 036 059 \ (.95
- 4 . - . +
i LOCHH] & alwone i 181 211 0.59 l 357 |16 2402500 | 1OESA70 | 10157 020 1171 9463 93 80
Fional 1141 19 WD L | ' 7009 1NIX) AL TG O 1909442 | 107 0491 o448 2251 OK.T7) i LN




(i) Ouwsstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants  or any
on equity

Av on March 31, 2014, the Company dicd oot have any outstinding
GDRs/ADRs/Warrssns or amy comvertible instrumentis

(xiii) Plant Locations

| Salem Plaoe: Aiwar Maun Road, Kanumapunun Villuge, Salem -
B0 106, Thumil Naehu

2. Kancheepuram Plant: No. I, Timmasundeam Village (White
Gatel, Chennd, Bangalore Highway,  Kancheepuram — Tiduk,
Kancheepuram - 631 502, Tl Nadu

5 Redhills Plant: Nocl 1, Angadu Road, Nallur Village, Reelbiills,
Chema - 600 (67, Tamil Nach,

1 Belgaum Plant: No.277/2, Desur Village, Kamapur Road,
Belgaum - 590 014, Karmataka

5. Homnali Plant: No, 10972, Melebermur Road, Kundur Villag,
Houmah "Taluk, Divamgere Distoct, Honnali - 577 219, Kamatak,
6. Kobsaadulli Pl Sengin Pasvanthalave Villgar, Kolassusliall
Paochuryat, Pabsoodke Tabok, Dbwrrrapon Dienct - 636 806, Tarrl Nochy,

70 Madurd Pl Na76/20 Dindigul Macusd Main Rl
Thinnshneyaellug Vicdiparn Taluk, Macksu 625 221, Tl Nochu
8. Thaluiveal Phnt: V' Kooty Rowd Piriva, Attapannat, Perivers
Post, At Tashak, Thalanvasal, Salern Disnc 636 102, Tamil Nachs,

9 Vellsandhod  Plane No42/71b&le, Hosur Main  Roed,
Vellsandhai, Thandukarnahalli (Fo), Palacode, Dharmapun 656
H08, Tamil Nadu.

10, Salem Milk Prochoct Plant: Amar Mam Road, Ramalingsparm
Village, Salemn 636 107, Tl Nachu

1. Karur Plant: Ayyampalayan, No,8717 1, Arsvakurichi Taluk,
Karur 639 111, Tamil Nadu.

12 Hyderbad Plant: SyNo32/Pan, Summm Industrial Ans,
Quthbullapur Mandal, Hyvderabad 500 055, Telengun

13, Chinoor Plant: SyNo#21 & 822, M.Bandapalli  Village,
Puthalapatta Mandal, Chittoor 517 127, Andhea Pradesh,

(xiv) Address for Correspondence

For share trusfers, share conificates, change of addros, dividkends

and uny other query relating 10 shares:

M/ INTEGRATED ENTERPRISES (INDIA LIMITED,
30, Rarmara Resideney; 4% Crons

Sampize Road. Malleswaram

Bangalare — 560 003, Tel; 091 < 080 - 23460815 - 818

Fuxz 091 < 080 - 25460819 E~rmul: alimi@nsnl.com

For Invesiors” Assistance

Me S Chandrasekas, Comprny Seoretiury

Hutsun Agro Prochiset Limited

CIN: LIMOTIN 986101 2747

Daoraine, Deoor No | 7200,

Raiiv Ganelld Salai OMR,

Karapuklamm, Chennag (400 0697,

Phooe Now s 0910824501622 - Fax No, < (91-044-2450 1422

E-Mail: secrvtaniali@hatsug.cony: Website: wwayhatsun, com

Phisis b coufirm that the Company has adogned a Code of Condo for

the rvemnbers of the Boand and the Seror Minagernent Personssel wd
thesee Ciocdess ane anailubde an the Cormpeany’s welsite wawwhaain.com |
confirm that the members ol the B and the Semor Masigrment
Benonned hive complierd with the Code of Condoct in regoct of the
firnancial vear ended M 31, 201

ot FIATSUN AGRO PRODUCT LIMITED
Sbs.

R.G. Chandramogan

Clestrman & Manoging Direvctes

Maces Cherai

Phte 7 Mo 2014




CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
TO THE MEMBERS OF HATSUN AGRO PRODUCT
LIMITED

We luae exunined e comphance of  conditions of - Corporate
Grewerrance by M/« Hasun Agro Product Lirsieed (“the Carmpany™ fie
the vear endod 31 March, 2014 as supukated m Clase 49 of the Listing
Awreernent enteredd by the Connprany with the Stock Exchunges

e Campliance of conditiops of Corporae Governance ¥ the
resporisibility of the Munagement. Our examination wis limited © a
review of the procedures & impletnentations thereol adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of the
Caorporate Governunce. It s neither an andit nor an expression of

opiminn on the fnancial sttements ol the Compuny

I cur copirieon sund 0 the best of oar infoemation and dcoording 0 the
explanations gven 1 s and the representistions made by the Directonr
and Munagement, we cernify that the Company i complied with the
condiions of Corporate Governaner s stipulited i the abowe

miertioned) Liaimg Agrveomont

W e the skt ooongliance i neither on sssmnce s 1o the e wiabiility
of the Company nor the efficency o effoctivenes with which the
Managerment his conducted the aftars of the Compruny

For S Dhemapel & Asocmtes

Prisctigng Company Socretanes

Sis-.

N. Ramamathan

Pty

Mernbership Now Foaas

CPNacs 110655

Pace: Cherusu

Dhate 25" panie, X014

KEIOIRT ONY

ORIOS

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

We, R.G. Chandramogan, Chairman & Managing Direcor and
S Subrmuian, Chief Financal Officer of M/, Hasun Agmi
Product Tamied, comify that

1. We hine reviewed the fimancal statements and the cash low
stemnent of the Company for the yoar ended March 31, 2014 and
that 1o the best ol our knowledge and behef:

n these smements do not contan any redtersally untrue
sttement or omit anv matertal Gt or contian sttements tha mighe
be mslending

b) these statements topether present o true and fur vew of the
stite of wlfairs of the Comparsy and of the results of operations and
cash  flows

conformity, in all motenal respect. with the exestmg generally

The financml stements have been prepared in

accepted accounting principles, including accounting standaeds,
applicable Lows and regulanons
9 There are, o the best of our knosvleelee and beliel, no trusactions
entered mio by the Company during the year which are frsudulent,
szl or isolative of the Companys Code of Conduct.
5. We accept responsibility for establishing and maumtiining
iternal contrale for linancial reporting and  that we  have
evitluated  the eflectiveness of internal control systemns of  the
Company pertaining 10 fimmeial reportng and we have dsclosed 10
the Auclitors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies i the desin or
operation of such internal controls i any, of which we are aware and
the steps we b taken or propose to take: 10 rectify these deficencies,
b W hive frelicssted 10 the aucditoes and 1o the Audit Committee

o significant changes m mermal control over finanaal reponting
churing the e

b sgnificat chimges in accounting poboies during the year wud
that the same have been disclosed in the notes 1o the finsincial
staternents; iand

v itsmees of simficant fraud of which we lave become aware
and the mnolvement therein, if ay; of the management or other
employees huving o significant role i the Clompuny s iiternal control
svstern over finaneial reporting
However, duritg the yvear thers were no such changes or any such

ST
Sd/-

R.G. Chandramogan
oo & Maruuging Direcios

Sd/-
S, Subramanian
Chied” Frrsunwend Offices

Mace: Chenirm
Dt 7 Ny, 20111




OVERVIEW

Haoum Agro Procuct Limiterd (“Hatam™ or “the Compan™ is in thie
Insines of manufactore and sale of milk, milk prochcets and ioe e
The Firncial saternents are prepared i accondance with accounting
principles generdly  scoepted 0 I, inchuding the  Accounting
Stnctarchs otified tmder the Comprunies Act, 1956 (“the Act™ read with
the General Cireubar 872014 chated 4h Apol, 2014 of the Minstry of
Corporate Affars in repoct of Section 133 of the Corngranies Act. 2013,
Our Managesnent scoepis responsbility for the mtegrity and objoctivity
of the finauxid satements, a well s for the samos estmaes sund
Judgments used therein, The estimaies and judgments wdating 1o the
financial statersents hanve been made on a prodent and ieasomable besis
o thet the financial saterents reflect in a e and far manner the foom
and substnce of rrnsactions, and resonably present our state of affiirg
prolit anel cash flows Jor the year

GENERAL ECONOMIC SCENARIO & INDUSTRY
STRUCTURE

[y economy grew at around 4.7% in 201514, althongh among
the highest i the World, has dowed i the ket two yearns. High
inflation and slow growth continues 10 remain ke concerm lor the
Gevernment, However, with widespread reform messures initiated by
ihe Government in recent months like narrowing external and hscal
imbalances, tightening monetary policy and - addressing murket
wilatility coupled with the expecttions from the formation of & new
Government, the Indian economy i expected 10 go bawk 10 an 8%
rowith tragectory i further strucnural reformes, particulardy in (he felds
of energy, agriculture and the kabor et are irrplemented quickly.
India continues to be the kingest producer of milk in the warld and
accounts for 17% share i global milk production.  Milk
procuction in India has gone up from 53.9 million wonnes MT in
199091 1o maore than 133 MT of milk in the year 2012-15. Tndia,
apart from being a leader in milk production, is atlso the Largest
consumer of milk in the world,

The Indidn dairy mdustry s expecied w grow at abow 13-15%
anpually over the next 3 yeurs, due W increase m - conmsumpnon ol
valuesadded products and the salue chain becoming more and more
organtsed. The et share of vale-added prochucss s kely w
incrrstse o 317 fiom the current 21% during tdus penod. The man
factors driving growth are inereased consumer interest in higher
protein diets, greater affordability duc (0 growing chsposable incomes
and psing awateness and availahility of dary through channels such
as onganwed retail and food service segments Inchia's Torroal duiry
market has shoawn strong growth i reoent years, which s likely w0
accederate due w product innovation, etubling govermment poboes

Management Dfﬁmfg

and ndustry consolickation,

Your Company is well aware of the industnad scenano and being
alerr, focuses mamly on lomg-term goake soudy and prrofitable
devedoprment. Tts srong brand - coupled with the suned product
portfolio enables it o meet adverse conditions confidently
averrome it Your Company remains confident of s long term
business. prospects and s ahility 10 sustam . a fiir retum o the
sharcholders,

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY
The finaneial performances are covered in the Digecon” Reepiot
(e same cart be teferred 1o in the sud Report

OPPORTUNITIES

Milk s the sngle bigest agricultural commedity in value n the
Clountry, vitlued at approsamasely R 400,000 crores, I Iickia, milk i
a reguliar part off the dictary programme, whilchy results m svenady nse m
il consummption and henee demind is likely 1o rise continuonsly and
there is sulstantial growth potental for your Compeay

Higher disposabile income, greaer awanencss o Lyesabths wnsdd puatminen
and willingness 10 gpencl anong voung geoerion 1s rupnelly entiangng
this opportniT.

Faver increasing population and nse m moome leves will sex: hidfi in the
consumption patert in fnour of vilue-added products besides the
growth in demand for oo milk Milk, apuurt from heing consumed
as such, is wsed in producmg a ke vanety of milk products fiket cured,
aram, butier, ghee, milk powdere pancer . The producion
infrastracture of the Company is constanty being upgracied o tike
pehantape of this opportunity.

Your Company follows suingent quality imeasures i enwunng
pdicturing of quality: producs wvualable 0 cortmumers at an
affordubile price. Your Company is also conscous of brand bualding
Some of the brands of the Company like “\run” jce creams
TBRACO" lce creams and “Arokya” milk are familiar o the
COMmOn marn,

Thiere is a phenometal scope Tor inngvanons n procuc developoment,
packiging and peesention. With technalogead achamcement
availabiiity of balancing equipment, the Sexbiliy of product mix r
wemendous and the Company can keep on adding w s proch fine
Your Company s aleady in the frctivot of these imtmtives which
reflected by the mereasng mrmover of the Compuan

Your Company has o profissionallv-trained, techmenl  human
resource pool, huilt over years o meet the challenees in the dury
industry The main advantage of your Cormpany’s strength fies in its
wlicient and effeetive supply and cold cluun manoagemeent, wiuch




smaller plavers are lacking  Phis allows it wade reach and targeted
coverage i i markets Your Company also has talented  and
commited human resouces who work s o team w the attimment

of organsanonal objectives,

Frequent changes i Government pobey wath respect 10 expon ol
milk products and aomouncement of adboc sulbvady 1o the farme s
atched o comaperitive societies e magor deterrent Sced by the

Diary Inchwry

At present, onganised dairy industry handles only 28% of the milk

produced i the Counoy Cost elfective  technologies,
echunisation and quality control measures are seldom exercised
in unongansicd sector and rerain key bssues 1 be addressed.
Fhere 1 u gross lack of awareness among tarmers abow the
quality  parameters, including  micrbiological and  chenucal

contunimants as well as resiclual antibiotics,

ML, aeirag a bighly perishuble commodity, needs efficient cold cham
marsgrment that can be prosaded only Ty onganisedd plissers as the
sume. nvohes more capital ivestmens. Your  Company
continuousdy developing and applving scientibic oethods o improve

thiee equalivy of milk processed and extend its shelf’ life

Lawk of proper infrastructure Hilities like good mads, continuons
power supply andd adecpinte mansport support s another o

deterrent teed by the Diury Indosury

Your Compeany 5 foowsing on the conssstent asailability and
procurement of quadity milk throughour the year by wnproving the
pet capital vield of animals by applving saentbic methods, geneti
mprovernents,  scientific  feeding.  properdy  masgged  animal
fusbsmndry practices ete. Your Company constantly educares the
farmers on how W maintuin quality and improse milk viekld I
arvangging sapply of good quuadity feeds w Brmers

Your Cornpary has Deen leseraging an the bnprovement given its
coononmes of sale and with is inberent ability woadopt new

tectmologges, buas carved out it own mehe m the marker,

The abowe imobves lurge mvestment i the production and
distmbunon mfrmstrocture which can be prosaded only by bigues
cornparties ke us

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR
ADEQUACY

The CEO aned CFO cerficagon provided m the CEO and CRO
ceraficanon soecton of the Corporte Covernance Repor discuses

the adeqquincy o our dnternad control systems and procedures

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Sucorsdl brnplernentation of SAP ERT facilivies un effective online

MIS system, which helps in conmabised control of opettions atull the
units of the Company, Your Company constantly upgrades and
reconfigures this application o effectively monitor the increasing
sealee of operations of the Compam. The hardware and network
wifrastructure v bemng  constantly  reviewed o merease he
bandwidth and reduce operational costs, This s an ongoing
process and your Company is committed 10 leverage the Ienefits
of TT o enhince and optimse benclits o uself and
customers. Cotstant training and guidance luas been provided (o

all the end users.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES /
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING
NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

Your Comprany values its human resource as the most significant
weset andd the kev focus is to attract, retain and develop tdent ay
a resource. Your Company provides a congenial working
atmosphere which will foster creative thinking. As part ol

manpower  development  and 0 enhance  operatonal
efliciency, training programmes have been onganised o

The HR

programmes of the Company focus on building capahilines and

employees  ar all  levels, wherever  necessary
engaging emplovees through vanious initisves 1w help the
orgamsaton consolidate and achieve sustamable e growth for

the binsiness

Industral Relavons remmmed cordinl ot all mamudactunng

locations during the vear

Effective employee communication through varons channely
ensured that all the employees are kept abreast of the current
business situation, This has helped your Company o build
mumual mrust and conbidence with the employees. The total strength

ol the Cornpany s on 317 Mirch, 2011 was 5310

OUTLOOK AND RISKS & CONCERNS ARE COVERED
UNDER OPPORTUNITTES AND THREATS.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Staemems - this peport desenbing the Compary’s objertives,
projections, estimates and expectafions nuy constitute “forwird
looking statemnetts” within the meaning of appheable Laws and
regulntions that mmobe fsks and  uncemanties. Such statemens
represent the intenition of the Management and the effors being por
into place by them 1o achieve certain goals, Actual results migh diffes
manenially from those either expressed or implied m the statement
depending on the circumstances.  Therefore, the mvestors e
requested] o make their own independent assessments and
mdgments by considermg all relevant factors before malang any

Irvestonent decision
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Hatsun Agro Product Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

W Tuwe andited the sccompanying frsncial staemments of Hatsun
Agmo Product Limuted {“the Company™), which compnse the Balanwe
Shicet as ot Munrche 51, 2004, aned the Stuterent o Profit and Leese andd
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

sigmificant accoumnng pohiaes and oter explammory informanon,

Management's Responsihility for the Financial Statements
Munagement s responsible for the propamoon of these fimancial
staternents that give a troe and Bir view ol the fiancidl position,
firancial performance and cash Hows of die Company in accondance
with accounung prnciples generally accepred m Incha, meluching the
Acconnting Standands notified ander the Compames Act, 1956
“the Act™ read with the General Cireular 872014 dated 4+ April
2004 ol the Mimisuy of Corpore Affairs i respeer of Secnon
153 of the Companies Act, 2013, This responsibility includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevam w the prepamuon and presentavon of  the  hnancial
staternents that give o troe ool B view and ane free Trom: muterial

misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsbility i o express an opimon on these financial
stnternents bosed on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Sundards on Auditing ssoed ba the Tnstioae ol
Chanered Accountanms of India. Those Standards require thar
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and pedioem the
rensonable  assurance abouwt whether the

wadit o ol

financial maternents are free from maresial missuirement

At andit imvolves performing procedires 1o obrain audit evidence
abow the amouns and disclosures in the financial starements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
meluding the assessment of the nsks of matenal misstatement
of the financal stemens, whether due o fraud or ermor In
moking those sk assessiments, the anditor comsiders internal
control  relesant o the Company’s  preparation amd v
presentanon of the financal sttements i order 10 desygn andin
procedures that are approprinte in the cireumstances. An oodit also
micluddes evahuwiting the appropeiatencss of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness  of the accouning estimates made Ty
menagernent, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ol the
financial statements. We believe that the sueit evidence we hiave
obtamned 1 sufficent and appropriae w provide o bast jor our

andit opirion.

Ouini

Tn our opinion and to the best of our information and accordine

0 the explanations given o us, the linancial staternens give the
wlormanon required by the Act in the mammer so requared and
give o true and far view in conformmty with the accountmge
principles generally scoepted i India:

) the case ol the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the

Company ax at Muarch 31, 2014

(b} i the case of the Statement o Profit and Loss of the profit

for the year ended on thar dane; and

() i the case of the Cash Flow Statement. of the cish flows for

the year ended on thist date
I As reguired by the Compames (Auditor’s Report: Order, 2005
the Order™ maned by the Central Gevermument of Tndia in teroms
ol stubsasection A of section 227 of the Act, we ghve in the
Annexure a statement on the mattens specified m paragraphs 4
aned 5 ol the Ondern
2. As required by section 22708) of the Act, we tepont that

i We have obtamed all the mformaton and explanations which
1o the best of our knowledge and beliel were pecessary lor the
purpese of our iy

by In our aprmion proper books of account as reguined by law
luve been kept by the Company so tar as appears from o
examination of those hooks;

(o) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profic and Loss, and Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books ol acconnt;

d| In our apmion, the Balanee Sheet, Suiement of Profic and
Lose, and Clilt Flow Staternent comply with the Accounting
Standirds referred 1o in subsection (3C) of «wction 211 o the
Compames Acy, 11996 read with the General Caocular 872014
dated 4 April 2008 of the Ministry of Corpaorate Afliirs in respect
ol Section 133 of the Compranies Act, 2013;

c1 OUn the basis of witten representations recenved from the
dlivectoms ax on Maech 31 2000, and taken on record by the Board
of Directors. Divectors, nome of the directars is disqualificd as an
Murch §1, 2014, from bemg appomsed as a direcior i terms of clse
ol sub-section |1 ol section 274 o the Companies Act. 1956,
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chanered Accountants
1CAl Firm Registranon Numbers [01O49W
Sd/-
per S Balasubrahmanyam
e
Memberslip Numbes: (155315
Pace: Chenna
Dune: 7% May, 2004




ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF

EVEN DATE
Rex Haatsam Agros Prodhuct Limited ('the Cormpany”

b The Compuany s mamtned proper records showing 1l

particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fieed issets

Al fixed assets hove ool been plivically verified Iy the
rranagernent charing the yesr b there 3 a0 wegule progrmme o
verification which, in our opimion, bs ressonable having regard (o the
size of the Company and the nature of its ussets. No - muteril

dhserepeincies were noticed on sach venficanon
i Thene wis nodposd of sbssrmal et ol the foed sseschmgs the vee

i} a0 The management has conducted physical verficanon of

inventory at ressonable intervals during the year,

b The procedhures of plvsical verification of inventory followed by
the mumagement we reasoaable and hdequute in nelation uy e siae ol

the: Clorngrany sl the mumure of s bosmess

of The Company & mantaming proper records of - inentong

Discrepances noted on physical seribciton of inventores were oot

rraterial, ancd hanve beens propedy dealt with in thee books of accoune.

Gy Accoeding 1o the mibemanon and explaanons gyven w s, the
Caonnprany Duss ot granted any ks, socued or uesecured 10 conmpsanies,
firrrm on othey parties covered i the regster trauntmed under section 301 ol
the Act. Acoonthingdy; the provigons of davse i) to o) of the Order
we pot applicable o the Company and hence not commented

ll,lﬂll

b According to inlormation and explanations given to us, the
Coampany has not taken any loans, seoured or unsecured, from
companies, firms or other parties covered in the  register
section 301 of the Act

munnuuned undey Accardingly, the

provisions of  clause 4iike) 1o (g of the Order are nor

applicable to the Company and hence not cammented upon,

) In our opinton and according o the indormation and
explinations given 1o us, there is an adequate internal control
system commensurate with the size ol the Company and the
titure of its business, for the purchase ol iwentory and fixed
assets und for the sale of goods. During the current vear, the
activities of the Company did not mvolve any sale of services
During the couree of our audit, we have not observed am
mumor weakness or continung failure 10 correct any major

weikness in the internal control system of the Company 1n

respect ol these ureas

v According 1o the injormuation and explananons proviced by the
management, we are ol e apimion that there are no contracts
and arrangements that need 1o be entered into the register
mamuuned under secuon 01 o the Act dunng the vear
Therefore, the provisions of clase v and (Vi) of para 4 of the

Order are not applicabile (o the Compuny,

vt T respoct ol deposits sooeptedd, i oo opision and acconding us the
milommanon and explinanons gven 1o os, diecetves ssted [y e Resenve
Bank ol Tndia snd the provisons of sectiors 58, S8AA ar any ot
el proassions of the Act wnd the rudes frumed there under; 1o the
extent appheable, have been comphbed withe We e wdoemed Iy the
rrsumagernent thiat b oeder hew been paesod by the Cormprony L Besmd,
Naticna] Ciomparny Linw Tiibured or Reserve Bank of Inclia oe sy Count

or any other Thbunal,

vl Inoour opimon, the Company has an mternal aodit system

comrmmensirsaie with the seac sl reiare of s boaness

it We have broadly reviewed the books of acconnt relamms 0
roaterials, Libour and other iterns of cost mudntained by the Compeany
punant 10 the Rules made by the Central Governument foe 1
aintenance of cost recored ander secoon 200 1 o of e
Caonnparties Act, 1956 and we ae ol the ogatrion that gaine e (e

preseribed accoumty and reconds buave been made and nuntiined

ax:  Undsputed sttutory dues including prosvadent Tund,
B

mvestor - etucation and potection fund,  emplovees”  state
msurance, incomestax, sdes-tax, wealth-1ax, service tax, customs
duty, excise dury, cow and other mutenal statwory ducs have
generally  been  regulars with  the

cleposited approprsate

authorites,

b According 1o the information and explonanons given 1o
us, oo undipputed amounts payable in respect of providen
fund, imvestor educanon and protecton fund. emplovees state
msuranee, income=tas, wealth<tax, service tax, sales-tax,
customs duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutony
thees were outstunding, ar the vear end. lor o period ol more

than six manths Irom the date they became payable




¢ Aceording to the recards of the Company, the dues

outstanding of income-tax and sales-tax on account of

any dispute are as fallows:

Nottwe o Nt Arnicast skt fatim
s of dines R it bk which the | whese diguae
Aot sekites. w8 pencng
bcoere Tiox | Incowe This UL FY 1959 | High Conn
Act, 196l of Juchoatia,
Mk

x The Company has no accumulated losses ot the end of the
financial yeur and it has not incurred cash losses in the

curvent und immediately preceding financial year

xil Based on our audit procedures and as per the
mlormanon and explinations given by the management,
we ire of the apinion that the Company has not defaolted in
repaviment of dues o @ financial institution or banks. The
Company did not have any outstandmg dues in respect of

uny debentures during the vear.

xti. According to the informanon and explanations given
o s oand based on the documents and records
produced 1o us, the Company has not granted loans
and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge

of shares, debentures and other securities,

xiit) In our opinion, the Company is not a chir fund or a
nidht 7 mutaal benefir fund 7 sociery. Therelore, the
provisions of cluuse $xiiil of the Order are not applicable

ti the Cormpany

xiv.  In our opinion, the Compuny i not dealing in or
tradhing i shares,  securities,  debentures  and  other
mvestments. Accordmgly, the provisions of clause 4ixiv) of

the Order are not applicable w the Compuany,

s According to the information and explanations given to us,
the Gompany his not given any guacantee lor Joans taken by

others from bank or finanaal mstitutions

il Based an information and explanations given (o us
by the management. term loans were applied for the

purpose for which the loans were abtained.

xvit! Having regard 1o the Company's explanatuon  as
regards the operation of a centralized treasury functon und
more fully described in note 40 of the linancial statements,
we repurt that the Company hax used fundy raised one short term by

friom hanks do purchuse certain fived axsets agprepating R 7, 89014 lakis,

xvi) The Company has oot made any  preferential
allotment of shares (o parties or companies covered m the

register maintained under section 301 of the Aay,

xix) The Company cid not Tuwe iy outstanding debentures duing the

yeas

xx! The Company has ot raised any money by public Issues
during the year and accoedingly, the provisions of clause 4xx! ol

the arder are not applicable

o) Baser| upon the adit procedunes pedormed e the purpose ol
reporting the e and fior view of the firsneial stemenes and a per
the indormation and explaations gven by the mamigement. we
report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noteed of

reported dunng the yean

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Charered Accounmants

TCAL Firm Regsistration Numbwr: [OTOH9W
Sd/-

per S Balasubrahmanywm

Parmer

Membership Number: 053315

Mace: Chennm

Dhates 7 N, N4






BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2014
All amouni are in lakhs of  Indhan Rupees unless otherwase statod)

Particulars

L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Share capital

Reserves and sirplos

‘2) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
ang - term hormwings

Deferved vax Halilities, net

Orthier long term Liabilities

(3) CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short <erm bormowing

Frascde payables

Othier Sabilities

Sharr-term provision

TOTAL

1L ASSETS

1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Ixed amers

« Tangible awets

- Intangble assets
Clapita) work-in-progress

Investmenis
Lasanes o] advances
(ther nan-current assets

‘2) CURREN' I' ASSETS
nventories

I'rade receivahles

Cash and bank balances
Short-term loans and advances
Ohher current assets

TOTAL

Summmary of sgoificant accounting pohcies

he accompamying nowes are an wegral pan of the inancial ssnemens

: As a1
Muarch J1, 2004 '

3 1,077.25
| 16,862.44
17,939.69

24,551.45
2,784.01

.

- e

| 15,029.68

q 9,055.54
10 14,646.21
I

182.40
38.913.83
84,221.43

(R 79.98
14 5,476.01
15

__119.35
66,672.73

16 8,856.19
17 2,189.79
19 1,072.74
14 5,205.51
15 22447
17,548.70

84,221.43

e

As

March 31, 2013

1077.25
11.478.87

1295612

20.359.00
271604
56,15

FII20%

1281224
HAHS 5
10,652.11
Hr3.83
B2.621.80

65,710,045

HELF02.04
174.18
147805
Fins4.52

(YRLL
220878
31337
46,739 45

| 1,069.50
27708
3,022,463
A0

682,80

22 470,64
68.710.05

As per our report attisched of even die

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Charnered Accountants
1CAL Firm Registration No. |0HMOW

wdd/- sd/- sd/-

Er S R.G. K.S. Thunarajan
ey Chairman & _l:)»im Managing

Membership No: 059315 Alnaging Director rector

Place: Chentai
Date: May 7, 2014

Place: Chennud
Dhate: May 7, 2014

For and on heball of the Baard of Directors of Hatsun Agro Produet Limited

sd/-
S, Chandrasekar
Ciompany Secretary




STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2014

All amonnts are m lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stared

REVENUE

Revenue from operations (grows

less: Exeiar ‘hl“

K"\f’llljl’ I'III]I ll'll".llll)lll et
(hher icome

Total revenue (1)
EXPENDITURE

Cont ol raw tatetials und components consmed
Purchises of traded goods

e 1/ decrease o mventones of fineshed goods,
writk-in-progress and taded goods

Employee benefits expenses

Otber expenses

Total (IT)

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) (1)-{I)

Depreciation

Amortsanon

Interest income

Finance costs

Profit before tax
TAX EXPENSES
Clurrent tax exprtise

« Tax payable

« MAT credi enatlermen

NEt current tax expense

Fovcome s pertammng in parlier years
Dieferred tiax churge /(enedit

Profit after tax

Eurnings per equity share ‘Nominal value per equiy shares
Re. [iMarch 31,2013 - Re. 1)) (Reter Note: 54

« Buge carmingy per share [in Ra

- Diluted carmings per share (o Rs

Summary of mgmificant accounting policies

e secompanying notes are an integral part of the financial satementa,

20,1

2
iy
s
4

12A
12 R
M)

2u

Year ended
March 31, 20014

249,721.14
(366.96)
24935418
B48.81
250,202.99

181,047.39
17.42

3,897.98
7.596.25

231,578.33

18,624.66
6,260,37
236,67
184.46)
4.067.59
B.144.49

1,707.13
(1,707.13)

a2.01)
67.93

As per our report attached ol even date

For S.R. BATLIBO!1 & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountanis
1CAl Firm Registration No 101049W

A sd/-
S. Balasubrahmanyam R.G. Chundramogan
e Chanrman &

Membership No: 033915

Place: Chetnui
Date: May 7, 2014

Managing Directn

Mace: Chetnm
Dante: May 7, 2014

wel/-

K.S. Thanarajan
'[oim Misnasging

Nirector

216.79530
293.89
26,501 .90
33019

1] oM S
961 .5

973.71
6.211.20
51.972.70

5, 108.48
FH50.05
18124
5,24
LA5.05

3,078,500

|, 13620
o024

(3500

17595

146689

i15
115

For and on belad! of the Board of Directors ol Hatsun Agro Product Lamited

sd/-
S. Chandrasekar

Company Secretary



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2014
(Al armonmits are m lakhs of Inchan Rupers unles otherwese stined)

Cash flows from operating acuvities
Net profit before taxation
Adjustments fie
Depreciation on tangible sty
Amortisation on ittanmble assets
1 Protit)/loss on sale of fixed assetener
Deferred Income recogmised
Vmirtisation of expenditiee
Lutereat lweome
Utwrealined exchange lows/ (gsiin)
Inserest and finance charges

Operating profit before working capital chunges

llll I'Mf‘/l)('l eas ill waeiiores

Incremse)/ Decreane in trade recenvabiles

Increase )/ Decrease in loans and advances
Increase / Decrease in clamm recenvable

Increase/ (Decrease) in current labilities and provisions
Increase /iDecrease) i provisions

Cash generated from operations

Phrect raxes paid met of refands)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

Cush Mows (used in} / from investing activities
Parchase of fived assets (mcluding copital work m progress:
Parchise of invesunents

Proceeds from sale of fixed aasets

Deposits made during the vear

Dieposite redeemed durnmng the vear

Margin Maney Depomts redeemed during the year
Insterest reveived

Net cash from/{used in) investing activities

Cash flows (used in) / from financing activities
Term loans availed during the year

Term loans repuid during the vear

Increase/(decrense) in Tacilities avalled from banks
Pabbe deposits repasd durng the vear

Divadend pasd

Tax on dividends paid

Lnterest and finance charges paid

Net cash (used in)/from financing sctivities

Net decrease; / inerease in cash and cash equivalents
Caashy andd cash eqquivilents w the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Year ended

Murch 31, 2014

8,144,949

6.260.37
236.67
(528.16)
14.40)
(79.23)
[84.46)
28.70
4,439.85

18,413.83

2,213.31
2,095.88
(1,825.26)
503.58
1#99.76
91.07

22,392.17
(2,376.76]

20,015.41

(24,323.95)
112,00}
704,01

1921.00)
3,004.23
228.00
84.46

(21,236.25)

21,127.80
(13,966.03)
2,211.70
(0.87)
(3,123.06)
(530,76)
(4.364.60)

1,354.18

133.34
018.28

1,051.62

Year ended
Muarch 31, 2013

Sainan

LR IRTIN PR
1814
2158
440
B8
15.24
1978
012

14.655.01

0N H
LAOTAS
RRTRITY
Jean)
281439
§.32

1551784
| AN 54

| 275866
IG7.98
5189

[FRL LN L)

27448
1524

14,503,002

My 00 By
24.071.29]
LIRS
MERH
161597
22,05
4.257.79

3360

200
H86.15

G16.28




CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR EN

All amounts are in lakbs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stued

a) Components of cash and cash equivalents
Claaly nnd « hegpues on hand
Balances with Scheduled Banks

IN carrent accounts

- Deposits with ongmal maturity leas th 9 months
= in unpaid dividend accouns (restricted )

* Thswe halances wre not availabile for un

Wi per our report attselied of even date

For 5.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants
1CAL Firm Registration Ne. 101040\

DED MARCH 31, 2014

151.31

759.15
100,00
1l.16

_1051.62

b the Cormpasny as thes represent corresponding unpaid dividend Habilities.

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of Hatsun Agro P

s/~ sd/.
rcr S. Balasubruhmanyam R.G. Chandramogan
"artnes

Chudrman &

Momberstup No: 053315 Managing Direx

Place: Clhennag

Place: Chennm
Date: May 7, 2014

Diste: May 720

or

"

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

7041

82341

24.06

K.S. Thanarajan

Jownt Managing

a18.2n

roduct Limited

sd/.
S. Chandrasekar

Company Secretiury
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Notes to financial staterments for the year ended March 31, 2014
(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless
otherwise stated)

1. Basis of preparation, presentation and disclosure of
financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
India (Indian GAAP)
financial statements to comply in all material respects with the

I'he Company has prepared these

accounting  standards  notified  under  the Compinies
(Accountng Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the
relevant provision of the Companies Act, 1956 read with
General Cireular 872014 dated April 4, 2014 issued by the
Minttry of Corporate Affiirs. The accounung policies
adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent

with those of previous year

2. Summuary of significant accounting policies

. Use of estimates

The prepamtion of lnancal satements in conformity with Indian
GAAP requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assurmnptions  that aflect the reported  amounts o revenues
expenses, assets and hahilities, and the disclosure of contingent
[mbilines, w the end of the reportng penod. Although these
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of
current events  and  actions,  uncertainty  about  these
assumptions and esumates could result i the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of

assets or lahilities in future peniods
b. Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost of aequisition less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, Cost comprises
the purchase poce and borrowing costs if capitalizanon critena
are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use and includes freight,
duties and taxes and other nadental expenses related o the
e uisition

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asser
is added 10 its book value only i it increases the future
henefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
stundard of pedormance. All other expenses on existing fixed
nssets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure
ancl oost of replacing parts, are charged to the staterent of profit and
loss for the penod durng which such expenses are incurred.

ANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gains or losses ansing from derecogmition of fived assets ane
measured as the difference berween the et dispesal proceeds and the
carrving amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement
ol profit and ks when the asset is derecognised

Cupital work-in-progress represents cost ol assets not ready K

intended use as at the balance sheet date,

c. Intangible assets

Intangible wsets acquired separmtely are measured on nitial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carned a1 cost less accumulated amormzanon and
accumulated impairment loss, i any. Profit or Loss on disposil of
intangible assets is recognised in the Sutement of Prolit and
Loss, Intangible assets are amornzed on a straight line basis over
the estimated wseful coconomic life

d. Borrowing Costs
Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary
costs incurred in connection with the wrmangement of bormowings,
costy  directly  artributable 1o the

comstruction or production of an aset that necessanly tikes a

Borrowing woguisition,
substantial penod of tme 1w get ready lor s intended use or sale
are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other
borrowing costs are expersed in the period they occur

e. Impairment of fixed assets

W) The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed ul cach balance
sheet date if there 15 any mdicanon of mmparrment based on
internal/external lactors,  An impairment loss s recognized
wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount w the greater of the assets nel
selling price and value in e, In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash lows are discounted 1w their present value
usng a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current marker
assewaments of the time value of money and risks specific to

the asset,

(it After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the ases over its rermssining weful fife,

m A previowsly recognised impairment los 5 increased or
reversed depending on changes i circamstances. However,
the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the
carrying value that would have prevadled by changing wual
depreciation i there was no imparment.



£ Depreciation and Amortisation

Diepreciation on assets is provided using the strdght-tine method

based on rates spectfiedd in Schedule NIV of the Clompanies Act.
1956 or on estmated usefill lives ol assets estiuted by the
nuagement, whichever is higher Individual assets oosting less

than Rs. 0.05 are depreciated fully in the year of pruarchuse.

Ihe estimated  useli)  lives considered  for depreciation /

amortsation of fixed assets are as follows

Buldings
4 Plant & Machinery 4-21
} Clania, crates & pudl Booees 1-3
chudeel uy plant and hinery)
| Furtiure & Fixtures 516
3 Office Equipment -5
6 \ehieles 1]
7 | Leaschold improvemients =3 yeun or over the lease

peviodd i Jower than the
estinated wsefil 1k

Sultwan 5

[he entimuted vseful v of aeets ncepuired as part of the busmess

acousition from Jyothi Dany Privane Linued

Huldimgs
Mant & Mochinery h
5 Vehicles

4 | Geodwill

g Investments

Investrments. which are rendily realizable and mended o be held

for not more than ane year from the date on which such
mvestmoents are made, are classified @ « urrent investiments, All

other investments are clyssified as 1 INZ-LETTI VeSENenTs

Current imvestmenty are carried in the fnancial satements ot
lower of cost and fhir value determined on an individual
imvestment besis, Longe-term mvestrnents are carmocl at cost. Flowever:
provison for diminuton in value s made to recognize o decline
other than lemporary in the vilue of the investments.

Omn dlispesal of an investment, the difference between its carrving
amount and ner disposal proceeds is churged or credited o the

staternent of profit and loss

h. Leased assets

Fitunce Leaoe

Leases under which the Company weumes substantially all the
risks and rewands of ownership are classified &5 fnance leases
Such assets are capitilized ar fair value of the asset or present
vilue of the minimum lease pavments at the inception ol the
lease, whichever i lower  Lease payments are apportoned
between finance charges and reduction of the [case tabality us
the implicit rate of return. Finance ¢ hirges are charged 1o the
statement of profit and loss. Lease munagement fees, legal

charges and other initial direct costs are « apitalised,

A leased asset is depreciated on a stradght-line hasis over the
useful life ol the asset or the uselul life envisigred i Schedale
NIV i the € ampanies Act, 1956, whichever is lower. However
if there 1 no reasonable certainty that the ( ampany will obun
the ownership by the end of the lease ter m, the capitalized asset
i depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
estimated usetl life of the asset, the lease term or the useful hie

envisaged in Schedule XIV 1o the (€ ompanies Act, 1956.

Qperating e

Leases, where the lessor, effectively retnins substantially
all the nisks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset,
are classilied as operating leases Operating lease payments
are recogmized as an expense  the statement of profit and

lass on a siraight line husis over the leas term
i. Inventories

Raw matenials, packing materials, components, stores and
spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable valuye
However, materials and other items held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost
i the lnished products in which they will be incarporaed are
expected o be sold at ar above cost Cost ol raw materiuly,
packing matcrials, components and stores and spares s

determined on u weighted ave rage hasis

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valoed ar lower of cont
and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and
labour and a proportion of manufcturing overheads hased on
hormal operating capacity, Cost of finished goods and work m
progress includes excise duty and 1 determined on o weighted

avernge basis,




Net realsable value i the estmated selling price in the orditary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated coss
necessary o make the sale.

j- Revenue recognition

Revenue from sile of goods 1 recognised on dispatch of goods 10
customens which corresponds with transfer of all sgnificant risks and
rewards of ownenhip. The amount recognized as sale s exclusive of
sales tax, und trade and quantity discounts.

Export benefits on Vikhesh Krshi Gram Upaj Yojana
(VKGUY) are recognized based on the recogrition of related
CXPOLT revente.

Interest income  on deposits is recognized on the time
proportionate method taking into account the  amount
outstanding and the rste applicable.

Royalty income is recognized on accrual basis.
k. Foreign currency transactions and balances
(i) Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reparting
currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign
currency at the date of the transaction

(ii) Conversion

Foreign currency  monetary items are retranslated usng the
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date Non-monetary
items which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in
a foreign currency ure reparted using the exchange rate at the date
of the ransaction. Non-monetary items, which are carried at fiir
vitlue or other similar valuation denominated in 4 foreign currency
are tramslated using the exchange rates thar existed when the
values were determimed.

(iii) Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising an the setdernent of MONCTArY iterms or
on reporting Company's monetary iterms at rates cdifferent from those
at which they were mitially recorded during the year, or reparted in
previous financial staterments, are recognized as inoome or as expenses
in the year in which they anse,

L Taxation

Tax expense eomprises curent and deferred mx. Current income i
i measured at the amount expected (o be paid to the ta authorities in
sccordance with the Indian Income Tax Act. Deferred income taes
reflexcts the impact of carrent year nming differences between toaible
moome and accounting income for the year and reversal of tirming
diffierences o’ eardier years,

The defermed mx chage or credit and the corresponding deferred L

Hahilities or assets are rocognizrd using the tax rates and o lows that
hawve been enacted or subsantively enscied by the balance sheet dates
Dieferred o assets are recognized only w the extent there & a
reasonible certainty that the assets can be realiacd in fanae
Deferred tax nssets are reviewed us at ench bakinee sheet date aned
written down or written up 10 reflect the amount that is reasonably
certamn 1o be roaled.

MAT credit is moogrnznd as an asser only when and @ the extent there ks
convincng evidenoe that the Compaury will pay noemal income i
duning the spedified periel  In the year in which the Minirmum
Alternative e (MAT) credit becormes dligible 1o be mvoenized as an et
i accorcunce with the moommendations contained in gidanes noe
wmed by the Institune of Chartered Acoountants of Indi, the sud weet 5
ereated by way of a credit i the suatement of profit and loss and shown as
MAT Credit Entitlement. "The Comparry reviews the same at each
halance sheet date and writes down the Grrymg amount of MAT
Crodit Entidernent 10 the extent there is no longer convincing
evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax
during the specified period.

Basic ciurnings per share are caloubated by dvaching the net profit or ks
for the penod attributable 0 equity sharcholders Gafier deducting
preference dividends and attnibutable toes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares ouetanding during the period. The weighted
average number ol equity shures outstanding duning the peniod s
achjustex] for events such as bonus tssue, bonus cement in # rights issue,
share wplit, and reverse share it (comsolidation of shaes) (hat huse
changed the number of equity  shases outstandding,  without
commesponding charge i msoures.

For the purpose of’ calcubating diluted carnings per shiare, the net proit
or loes for the peniod anmbutable 10 equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding durmg the veur ae
adjusted o the offees of all dilutive potential equity shares

n. Government grants

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when
there is reasonable assurance that the gramt / subsidy will be
reoeved and all awaching conditions will be complied with.
Government grants related to depreciable fixed assets are treated
as deferred imcome which is recognised in the saement of profir
and loss over the useful iife of the aset in the propartion in which
the depreciation on those nssets is chargedd,

0. Retirement and other employee benefits

i. Short term employee benefit plans

All short term employee benefit plans such as saluries, wages,
bonus, special awards and medical benefis which fall due
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within 12 months of the period in which the emplovee renders
the related services which entitles him o avail such benefits are
recogmized on an undiscounted  basis and charged 1 the
staernent of profit and hoss.

ii. Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is u defined
contribation scheme, The Company has no abligation, other than
the contribution payabile 1o the provident fund, The (€ ‘ompany
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme
s expenditure, when an cmplovee renders the reluted service
If the contribution payable o the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution alteudy
paid, the deficit payable 10 the scheme i recognieed as o lahility
after deducting the contribution wieady paicl 1 the comtribution
alreacy puid excreds the contribution due for services m envotl before
the balance sheet dae, then excess it meognized s an asset (o the
extent that the prespayvient will lead 1o, fie example, a reduction m
future payment or i cash refund

iii. Defined Benefit Plan

Ihe Company has an arrangesnent with Life Insurance € worpotation
ol India (LIC 10 administer its wranuty scherne. The contmbuation
peud/ payable i debited 10 the statement of profit and loss. Liabdity
tomards gratuity is provided on the basis of an actuanal valuation
usmg the Projected Unit Crodit method and debited to the statement
of profit and loss. Actuariad gt aned losses ansng dunng the vear ane
recognzzed in the staterment of prrofit and joss

iv. Leave Salary

The Company measures the expected cost of such alsences as tye
acdditonal wmoant that it expects to pay as i result of the unsed
entitlernent that has accumulated ar the mpormng date. Tl
Company has no bong wrm feme compotient

p Cash flow staterments

Candt femes are weported vang the it method whereda ookt hefone
tex s acfistod for the effocts of transactions of  non caush rature and any
chefirrade o sccruals of st o Rutcre casd rooetpes or praymients. The eash
Honws from mggubr revere eneriting Bruncing aod frvesing setivities
ol the Company ane seeregsted|.

Canhi aand cash exquivalerns i the cash floaw stasnient compeee casdy it
bank and i hand and dwrtierm isesaments with an ongmal mastunty
of three monehs or ks,
q.lhivlﬂwmmdhdpm

he Company uses derivative frsncial instrarmens, axch as, mierest nie
switps 0 hedlge interest e risk ansing from variable fae loans and w0
hedge: formagn curmeney: nsk ansing from Rature L eactions in) respect of
which firm comemitrents are made ar which e hghly protabie foreeas
tresactions, | e ( annpeuny cesgrumes these forwand contrsce and insrs

mmp‘xm}nﬁgﬁﬁnﬁ)l5-Wr}nt;~mnlnumqb(f
AS 30" Frswwnl rstnrmenes Reoognition ind Messuresens™.

The Comprny hes ackypterd princples of ek acoountmg s st out in
Acconmting: Seunckurd (AS] 30,"Financial Instnumernne Recognition an
Measurement”, to the extent that the ackption does not condlies with WY
accourting stanebarek and other sthortve proncancaments of Company
Liow and other regubuney recuarements

Basod on the recognition aned  rmeasurerment principles of  hedy:
accouriting set out in AS 30, the effective porton on changes in the fis
values of dervative financial instruments desigmated us cash low
heelges ure recognieed directly in reserves/ oxjuity aned sre reclassified
1o the staternent of prodit wnd boss upaon the oocurrence of e hedged
trwaction, The meflectve portion of the gain or loss o the hedging
nstrument & recognised immeciately in the staterment of profit and
loss. Changes in Eair value relating 10 denvanves not designated as
hedges are recognized in the statement of proofit and loss

Hedge Accounting is discantinued when the hedging instrumen:
expires o is sold, or terminated, ar exercised or no longer qualifies
lor hedge accounting Any cumulutive gain or loss on the hedging
mstrument is recognised in hedging reserve is transferred 1o prodit
and loss account when forecasted transaction occurs or when o
hedged tramsaction is no longer expected 1o oceur

. Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present
obligation as a result of past event und it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required (o settle the obligation, in
respect of which i reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are
not discounted 10 s present vadue and are determined based o
best estimate required o settle the obligation at the balance shees
date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estinutes,

Where the Company expects some or all of & provision 1o be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
rermbursement 1s recogmized i 4 separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating (o any
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimburserment

s. Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule Vi
1 the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has clected to present
carnings before imerest, tax, depreciation and  amortization
(EBITDA) as u separate line item on the face of the statement of
profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis ol
profit/ fosy) from contmuing operations. Iy it measurement, the
Company does not include  depreciation and Amorazanon
expense, interest income, finanee cosm and x expense.




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All amounts are in Lakbs of Dindien Rupees unless otherwise stated

J.SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised shares
250,000, (00 equity shates of Re 17+ euch
(March &1, 2005 250,000,000 couiry shares of Re |7+ each

AL000 preference shares of Ra 1007+ cach
March 31, 2005 500,000 preference shimes of Rs 1007+ euichy)

Issued capital
107,521,048 equaty shares of Re 17+ each
(March 31, 2005:107 821 548 eequiry shares of Re 17+ sach)

Subscribed and fully paid
107 691,648 cquity shares of Re 17+ each
March 31, 20018 107 691 648 exquity shares of Re 17+ pack

Subscribed and not fully paid
LA0,000 | Previces year 130,000 cquity shres of Re |
[Partly paid up for Re 0,257« (Previous year Re 0.25)] per shace. forfeited

KIZET

l.Mlh..‘nhm-ma.dh.nldnbeghnh'ndnthoc-dol’llpnpnniugpvn'od
Subscribed and fully paid

2.500.00

RILARE L)
30060 60

s ——

107022
1,078 92

LR
107692
—_—
0

055

LO77.25

At the beginning of the year
hovoed dorming the year
Outatanching as at the end of the yeur

Subscribed and not fully paid

At the beglinbig of the vear

Outntanading 2 ot the end of the year

b, Terms/ Rights attached o Equity shares

The Gompany his only one clas of equity shares having par value of Re.T per share - March $1. 2018 < Re 1720 Each holder of expuity shuates bs eutitled) W voe vote

per share. The Company declares and prwys chivichenes m Indin niprecs

Durmg the year ended March 31, 2014, the amonm of per share dividend recogmeed as disteibutions 1o equity stusreioldens was Re2.307- Mareh 11,2013 Ra 170/

I the event of liguidation of the Campiny, the holders of equity shanes will e entithed Lo receive remulning assets of the Commpuny afier diseibigion of ol prrefesendal

1,076,92

LTna2

1,076.92

1LiTh Y2

0,33

0.33

paysments  The distribution will be i proportion to the tmber of equiry stz bold by the skarenolders

. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

L P [ Sumsian

Ecpity shares allotted s fully paad bosus shares by capitalisanon of
Claprital Redemption Reserse

15897 216

20173

SaB% 2L
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All armonnts ure in Eakha of Ludia Rupees unless otherwise stared

=

d. Devails of sharcholders bolding moe thuan 5% shares i the € RTIpaATTy

Equity shases of Re. 1/7- esch ;Mareh 31 H13: Re [ £+ each) fully paid
Mz Chandramogan R .G
Mr Sathyan ()

As per the pecords of the ( fmpany; including it register of shareholdery/ membens and other dey)

NOTE

ST

FINANCIAL STATEMEN TS 2

Nosx “Holding Now | NHolding
62,371,279 57.92 ' 67071279 LA
10,072,237 9.35 0,897,257 919

interest, the alwowe aliare holeing represents bath legal and beneficial ownerhip ol shares

writians received fom dharehokders regurding benefical

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Securities Premiwm sccount

Babince ax per the Last financial stotements
Add: Adefitions during the year an mue of shares
Cloming batancr [A]

Capital reserve 18]
Capital redemption reserve

Balanee as per Jast financial statements
Lase: Awnount utilised wowsrds ime of fully pad o shases
Clomng balance €)

General reserve

Balunce as prer List financial matements

el | Transferred from stutement of prufit s Jims

Clostig balanes D)

Hedging Rewerve
Ralance an per luse Bnancal ststenerts
Gains/ Towses. ariving during the year
Imerent rate swap contriets cancelled during the year
Loterest rate swap contracts entervd during he year
Reclamificanon adustmenis included in the statemens of proodis aned Jom
Cloning bilance [E]

Surplus in the statenens of profit and loss

Balance i Profit and Loss Account

Bulance as pes Last fisancial sanements

Nt pmfit for the cureent yeat

Aroust available for Uppropriation

Less Appropriations

Dwideni

- Interis Gamount per diere Re2 50 March 11, 2003 R 1,70
Tax an divadend

Treansfer 10 General seseres

listal Appropriatims
Nn&wphi-lbemummofpmﬁtudbu |F]

Total IAIF[BI+{C]+ [D}+ [E]+(F]
3. LONG - TERM BORROWINGS

Term loans

Inthan mipee faan from lenks Seeired
Foreigy currency ot from tearnks Secutrerd
Fmim other parties (Secured

Other Loans and advances
Finance |rase obligations Sevured
Awens refinancr obligations (Secured

Amannt disclowed under the bead *t Yoher habilitien” [Refer tue 10

[March 31, 2014

17,673.91
6,857.52

24,531.43

24,531.43

3.328.16

T3.320.16
74.45

£99.02
899,02

4,613.30
_ B16.86
5,450.16

(151.1H)

151.18
(443,67
25733
(186.34)

3,115.12
#,168.57
11.783.69

2,692.29
157.55
01686

3,966.70

7,316.99
16,062 44

Non Current Portion

Muarch 31, 2013

16,126.19
£2%.0

20,350.20

20,359.20

332006

3328 16
7443

B9 02

ST

L LY

61330

1,226 00
4, 4466.84
5,602 60

LUML7R
e

1157807

————

Current Maturities

March 31, 2014

851408
1,278.79

9,792.87
(9,792.87)

March 31, 2019

R
s
.08

AR1S)
071

Cenas

ORI
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Al samounts are in lakhs of Tndlan Rupees unless otherwise stisted)

6.DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES, NET

Defierred Lax Liilwlits
Foved amene Brnpons of difference hetweens tax desimciution und deprerrttion

Churped for Gl reporting 2,827.77 2,752.50

Delerred Tax Asset
Tinpact ol expenditure Clayged 1o e stasemen of prodie i boss in the correne

your bur alloweed for e prarpose on puvesestt b (43.76) 140
2,784.01 2.716.08
7.0THER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Deferred Income 36.85 hl 2%
Less: Clurrent portion of Deferted Incime disclosed
under the Nead "Other Bubilities” Refer note 10 (4.38) 140
52.47 = W, 85
8.SHORT -TERM BORROWINGS
Short term loans
Laany repayalile on demand from banks
Cash credin Secured 11,409.98 ‘ 3,043.24
Packing Credit (Secured) - §,421.30
Packing Credit (U nsecured 952.63 2978 40
Factoring eredit (Unsecured 2,667.07 71930
15,029.68 1201224

Caslievedit facility and packing credit Seifity madled from Stane Bank of Tndia Limited is socured by a first harge o all the curvnt asets and pan-pasa L
change with ICICT Bk Lisited over existinng fied assets of the Ce ey pertanrg o Salem, Ranchipuram and Belgmnm ocations. Furtber, this i
liaw been personally gussrantecd In Munaging Diseowor wnd Jis Aonsse

Sevured packing credit baifiry hae been svatled from Stndid Chartered Bauk and (he eility was sooused by by oo identifived asets ar Sakern plant and
e persoral guarintee of Me RG Clandsirmogm and Me C. Satbyvan

Unsecuredd Packang creeit facility Tus Been avadled fiom HDFC Bunk Lismitod, This Gsility hus boen persmally guanteed by Me R.G Clanchmmogn
Urmocred Facormg crodie fiacality T been availeed froem Aods Bassk Lirsited, This Gicilis Fues beens prersonially praarantensd by Me R.G Claswdrmogn

—M_MI March 31, 2013

9. TRADE PAYABLES

Trude Pavabies (Refer note belosw) 8,284.34 8,294.71

Capital creditors 77120 188.88
9,055.54 8,483.59

Note:

There sre to averdue amousms pavatile i Micro and Small Eoerprtses i dedined under the Micny, Sesall asd Medim Enterprises Devedopnent Ace. 2006 b om
infieeration availabhbe with e Compary Further, the € iy b not paid any interes woany Micro and Small Enterprises duning the vear ended March 81,2014
and March 11, 2003




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al armensits wre b Lakbs of Indian Rupwrs unless otherwise stated

e[ Manh 31200 ] March 3L 00

10,0THER LIABILITIES
Current mraturithes of botag-term bommowimgs Refer Note 5 9.792.87 ER VB E
Dheterred Tncotne « current porsion  Refer Nete 10 4.38 140
Mark-ro-auarket lom on derivative contraces 143,66 47,73
Interost wocrued but o dise o Ly rrowtnes 124.00 .75
Invemeor Education & Protection Fund
shiall be cxedited by lalbowing amaant (as and when das
Unelaimed dividend 4L.16
U oclammand mussured deposin s iterest sceruod thereon 264
(s
« Interent tree serurity deposita from cuntomes 3,556.01
- Athaniees ieceived from costomers 208.31
\eerued Suluries and Henefirs 226.60 J )
Vidue added mx payable 106.49 253.2
« Pronident fund prayalie 19.7 LN
« TS payabile 43.73 L
Fsere duty oyl 12.55
Fmployee Stute Inseance puavalile 12,39 20
Central wales toox payabile 12,14 bl
« Chhiers statptory dies prayabile 9.57 b4l
14,646,2 T6as 11

IL.SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for employes benefits
Frowisom Tor gratuity 56.97
Prinasiom lor beawe ¢ wiwrfits 125.43

182,40

Others Provisions
Incoee Tax (INet
Iserin dividend payahle 130

:
Provesion for e o intetten dividend provyalake 73.21

58250

h73.83
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All amounts are m lakbs of Indian Rupees unfess otherwise stated

12 B. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - D -
Computer

| Goodwill ‘ software Total

— p—— — p— —— S
Cost / Valuation ‘

As at April 1, 2012 - 600,22 6022

| Additons - 187.27 187.27

’ Disposals - -

_ As at March 31, 2013 - 78749 | 78749
Additions - ‘ z(mﬂ 208.47
Additions through business ‘ '
acquisition 1,365.00 . 1,365.00
Disposals 2 %

' AsatMarch31,2014  1,365.00  995.96  2,360.96
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2012 - | 18207 ‘ 132.07
Charge for the year ' 18124 | 181.24
Disposals - a - l

_ As at March 31, 2013 | - 831 | s1381
Charge for the year ‘ .88 191.79 296.67
Disposals - e -

_AsatMarch 31,2014 | 4488 505.10 549.98 |
Net Block | ]

' As atMarch 31,2013 - 47418 4748

|

As at March 31, 2014 1,320.12 490.86 1.810.98




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All amounts are in lakhs of ndian Rupees unles otherwise stated

—m_;

I3 INVESTMENTS (V-hodnConnh-odm-wiu-wed)

Trade Investment (Long term)
fovestment in Equity Instruments unuoted
- 7,047 (March 31, 2013 - 7,147) Class A - Equity Shustes of Rs, 10/ each

fully paid-up in PPS Exwaro Power Private Limited with o presium of
Ra600/- per ahuyre

ITHATT March $1, 2019 179.477) Class B Erquity Shures of R 10/-
each fully paid-up in FPS Envirg Power Prvatn Limited

=3,000 March 31, 201 3- Nil Equity Shares of Re 100/ cach fully
paid-up in Jeedimeda EMuent Treatment Limited with 4 pressiurm
of R/~ per share

o Purtiodiiey Nl | R |

14.LOANS AND ADVANCES
Capital Advances

Unisecured. comidered good

Security Deposits

Utineeured, consddered gontd

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Unseenred, comsidered good

Other loans and advances
Vnnecared, conmidered good:
Advance to Suppliers
Safary advanee
Mdvance icame tux (Net of provision fior taxation)

MAT credit entitlement
MAT credit eonitlemem Relaning to earlier vears

I5.0THER ASSETS

[Unsecured Considered good, unless stated otherwise|
Non current bank balaness
Clatms Receivable

Unamortized Expenditure
Stamp duty pasd on lease ugreement
Anaillary cost of arranging the horrowings

NCHELS

30.03

Non Current

1.793.89

300.00

LN

2,699.00
2920

S0

Nan Currem
| March 31, 2014

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

2.205.78

011,091

SO0 0

g ny

Murch 31, 2013 || Murch 31,

224.00

17,12

B8.25

1337

| Migrch 31, 2004 March 31

LOVFINANCIAL STATEANLN

Mias

17.95

67.9%

Clurrent

2013

2,949.66 282100
1,349.33 790,657
888,92 18745
17.60 998

_ 320551 | 341800

Curront
2014 March 31, 2013

187.45 053,89
231 pa ] |

REN | 2660
22447 692,00




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All smaumms are m lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulurs March 31, 2014 Maxrch 31, 2013

16, INVENTORIES (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)
Rusw muterials and packing misterials 3,623.44 227143
Work-in-progrem 1,221.82 | 22252
Finished goods
- mmanufactured 230560 6,200.43
« tratled 3.93 .34
Store, spares and loose toals 1,701 .40 L37.7
_ B856.19 L0650
17 TRADE RECEIVARLES
Trade receivabiles outstanding for o period exceeding six manths
from the date they am due for payment
Unserured conmdered good 6.67 304
Dhoudalud - .
Lese: Allowance for bad and doubiful delas - -
6.67 164
Onhyer debis
Secured, considered good 1,429.50 A6 46
“Unsecurmd considered good 753.62 33574
2,183,12 1.273.
218979 4,277.58

18.CASH AND HANK BALANCES
Cash and cash equvalents
A Cash om hand - . 15131 IR Y
b Baluncee with banks
O current accounts - - 759.15 VAR ]
= Deponts with orginal mananty less than 3 manths
=Ohn vnypasid dhividend secounts - . 100,00
. - 1116 2506
— - - 1,051.62 91020
Other Hank balances
Deponit with origmal maturity for more than 12 monthy - . -
Deposit with otiginal nusturity for mure tharn 3 menths
bt less than 12 months - - 112 L0087
Murgm money or security against bomowings,
Ruraniees ar other commitments Ko 228,01 2000 B L X 1
- — 228X 212 AR
Amaunt disclosed under nor-current assets (Refer note 15 - 228 000 -
. : 1,072.74 "~ 3,022.63
Margin money deposits given as security

Margin maney deposits with o carmyang amount of Rs, 20 March 31, 2015 : Re 63 are suhject 1o first churge (o secure the company’s casht credit
boans and Rs Nil (Nurch 31, 2018 ¢ Re 250 48! are subject 10 first churge w0 seciire the oompamny s term lnan
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NOTES 1O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »

NOTES TO FINANCIAL

(Al smounts are in likhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

19.REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale Products
() Finiahed Goody

Milk

Milk products

Ien cream

Clattle feed
(1 Traded Goods

Clattle leel

operating revenue

(©) Export Benefits
i) Rovalis
(e} Serap stles and others
Revenue frvm Iperathons (Gross)

20.1 OTHER INCOME
Profit an sale of fixed asets net
Reconeries and otiery

20.2 INTEREST INCOME

Interest income on
-Bank deposits
ey corporute depesits, rln~lnnr_\ drpmul. el
Lo
Interent [ncome trausferred 1o Capital work in progress

21.COST OF RAW MATERIALS AND COMPONENTS CONSUMED

Inventary ut thye beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: nventory at the end of the year
Coost ol raw materialy and COMPONEnts consumerd

Detasils of raw materialy and components comsumed

Raw Milk
Others®

“ctuackes vaw marcral ani packing muteriud of milk precucts, wr-creans and cattle fieed

Detaily of Inventory

Raw wmaterial and ¢ DImponents
loe Cream Muterials
Milk Procucts Materials
Milk Marrnals
Ford Muterials

22.PURCHASES OF TRADED GOODS - CATTLE FEED

n.mmmmmmmwom

Inventory it the beganming of the vear
Trchedd gewods
Work-4n-progrems
Finashed goods (inc dochng excise duty)

Ieventory st the end of the year
Frden! goodks
Work-inprogres
Fintishoe grcads (inehacivg excine dury;

(Inerease)/ decrease 1 work-an-progress and fiasished gooxh

Yoar ended
Murch 31, 2014

158,035.69
66,270.85
16,064.23

7,296.91

18.87

1,039.50
6.48

188,61
249,721.14

528.16
32065
B8

125.80
6H5.90

(107.24)

Year ended Year yunded

| Murch 31, 2014 Masch 31, 2013

338 a19
1,222.52 0174
6,203.43 RAZA.

742933 | Bawii

3.93 139
1,221.82 12225
2,305.60 6,203.43

335135 | Timm
© 3,897.98 T ann

\."Jr "“lll'('

Mar I i1, 2015

129,115,764
66,4925 61
15,596.01

LU19.10

1,205, 10

79797
7.07
_429.15
216,795,779

201.58
12861
3019

36.05
1917

1088

4N

Lald2e
159,562.40
63076 78
227243
161,604_30

154.404.17
—AT20L13
161,604.30

85.1)
53,82
19494

237744

_%l.56
96156

381
(0457
127248

BN

055
ni
189784
49704




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AN amounty are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise suned,

Particulars

Detals of Inventory

Fraded goods
Cautde foed

Finished goods
Milk prodhucts
low cream
Milk
Cattle Feed

Woth-in-progros
Milk
Jee cream

AMilk Producn

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Sulanes, wagey and bonn

Contnbution 1o provident and other funds
Crrntuity Expense © Refer note : 39

Stall’ welfivre expenses

25.0THER EXPENSES
Comumption of stores and spares

Power and fuel [net of power credits of Ra 1247 March 31, 2009 : Ra 20546

Rent
Repairs & Maintenance
Planit and muchinery
« Bulding
- Ethers
Lsurance
Rates und tuxes
Legal and prolessonal expensey
Payment 1o the auditors (Refer Note below
Adventisement and wles pramotion expenses
Commumon on sales
Freight omtwarch
Printing and stahonery
Service Churges
Domntons
Directors sitting fees
Travelling and convevanore
Exchange differences, net
Miscellanrons expenses

Payment to Auditors (excluding service tax)

As auditor :
- Starutory Audit Fee
« Limited resview
« Reimbunement of expenses

26.FINANCE COST
Intorest expenses
Ancillary borrowing coss
Bank churges

Less:

Interest on loun trunsferred w Capreal work i progress

|

Year ended

March 31, 2014

3.93
3,95

1,358.12
65274
45,56
249.18
2,305.60

889,57
130.45
201.80
1,221.82

3,958.47
350.81
78.34
1,208.63
7,596.25

2,044.90
6,453.17
2,106.04

2,463.04
702.24
1,051.39
2098.09
289.46
34541
33.50
5,040.94
321.91
8,665.49
283.35
467538
10,07
3.05
2,101.26
BO7.19
1,333.37
39,019.29

27.00
6.00
0.50

33.50

4,360.62
79.23
198,17
4,638.02

(570.43)
4,067.59

Year ended

Murch 31, 2013

.38
338

5.580.53
10U, 20
T

| BA.22
020543

Liton
[ 15,76
10 68

| 200 50

L8061 .56
28,77
han
97246
621128

LIRSS
7.366.35
|, THS.62

167000
718
SHLGT
208 74
111.92
225

50.50

1200 Gy
$75.55

7.othot
208,74

(RRLAE

W%
htd)

L7l

| 8O

| 05

31,979276

s R
Hhin
0.50

0,50

£.9340.06
84.78
142,93

456177

118,72
tA43.05




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All wmounts ave i Likhs of Ludin Rupers unless otherwise smared)

Particulars Murch 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Clisktos rnade agains the | vy vt acknowledged s debon in resprent of
il LU F R ] TR

Ineoeme e iutte e 150N

he Connprary Hiw e certamm e ut concessionsl s of custoss dury s the Exgort Prormonon Capital Goods Schemme EIYCG Aot the Balimee Shins
Hate tatad Esport Ofbligutmony under the EPOG Scherme bs 1 SDNIE RN Marck 31, 2013 USD 380 86 Kalkhin (R 20714000 which # 4 b fitlliller] srver ot of
gt yees fomn the date of the Feenses As at Muvsehs 31, 2004, the € ety b bl Export Oftsligations amounting b LUST) SROSE R 2071406 (Manch 11, 2013
LISEY 372,02 Lakiw (Re. 2029348 o b optasaniing Export Obhganon of USD NIL (R NTL (Marchi 11, 0014 ST s Lakin Ra 441 210

Fatitnated) st of comtean Borvsmmng o be executed on catpital woonnt
et ol capital whvances) aid i pevmacden] Sor 4,990,950 | 0106
1,998,350 Luldim

29.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Reditedd pasties o (e € ey

Key manugement personnel

Me RG Chundramopuy (Clheadrrran aavd Maroging Direcios
Me KS T hamarajun Jowme Maraging Dives b

My C Suthvan (Esrcutive Digecti

Nature of Transactions:

Manusgerial remuneration

M RG Clawnbeamoegn 538 10,50
Me KS Thanansan 63.20 12200
Me €2 Suthwin 50.05 PRY
Dividendsy

Me R G Chandrunmmgn 1 B829.57 ML |
Me KS Thatemjan 29.96 1450
Me €, Satfivan 292.08 THE W

Balance at the year end
Interien Dividend Puyable

M: R.G. Chanddrasmpn - 270.08
Me KA Thanamgan - 411
Me €, Sathyan . HL24
JMOVEMENT IN DEFERRED INCOME
Olpening bakanco of sulwicy 61.25 nans
Lese: Incuine rexognszed dirmg the v (440, LN
Camang balunce of sabmidy * 5615 hl 25
*Disclosed in balance sheet as given below:
Delerrod moome nuonecarrent) i tuder other kg e labailivies (Note 7 5247 Wiy
Defermd income icurmss it utsder other long term haladicies Nowe 10 438 {40
56.85 6135




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless ocherwine sued

Particulars

JL.CONSUMPTION OF IMPORTED AND INDIGENOUS RAW
MATERIALS PACKING MATERIALS AND STORES AND SPARES
wRaw misteral snd components comsrmed

Lrpartes)

Indhgrnoas

b Stares and Spuares
Imparted
Lidagrrions

Particulars

J2.EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE (ACCRUAL BASIS)
Exporocon FOB Lass

KRenalty inevime

33.CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS
Raw masenals and componenits
Spare parn

Clapital good

JLEXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ON ACCRUAL BASIS)
I rved expenses

Laport Commission

Professioon cuayes

(thery

35.NET DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE
Peosod 1o which it redates (Final Dividend

Number of notirenident shirelwbders

Number of eguity shuues held on which dividend was due

Amount of dmvidend resmooed in USD*

Pertod 1o whilcls it relates dnterim Dividend - |

Number of nos-resident shareholders

Number of equuty shares beld an whoch dividend was due
Amount of dividend resatied in USD#|

Perlod o which i refates Toterien Dividend - 2

Number of nos-resident shareholders

Number ol equity shares held on which dividend wins duc
Ammsoundt ol dividene] romitied m UISD*

Peciod to which it relutes Trterion Dividend - 3

Number of noo-resdent sharcholden

Number of expuity shares held on which dvdend was duc
Amount of divicdend rermined i USD*

» of total
consumption

Murch 31, 201

Value

0.43%, 760.08
99.57% 180,267.31
100% 181,047,359
1.58% 32.56
98.42% 2,016.
100% 2,048.90

Year ended

March 31, 2014

20,638.46
6.48
20,644.94

529.46
16.61
226925
2B45.32

4894
27.12
4225
20.96
139.07

2012.13
2
703,128
2.81

% of totnl

consumption

0.19%
29.81%
100%

0.36%
99.64%
100%

March 31, 2013

Value

362
161,289.68
161,604.50

5.17
1,413.80
1,418.97

Year ended

March

*Divdends rermimed 10 nooeresident sharebolders m INR m ther bank accounts mamtained in Indis ave e inchuded here

3. 2013

19,583 00

19.590.15

257.64
10590

| 04818
1,416 712
25,29
51.28
557
L0
w.18

201112
)
5,702 628

2012-13
2
703,128

503

2001214
2
703,128

.22




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Al amounts are in lakhe of Lndiar Rupers unless otherwise stated

Foreign
Particalars R

36.DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND UNHEDGED FOREIGN
CURRENCY EXPOSURE

() Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure:

Trade receivabile LSD
Irade payable EUR
I'rade patyahle Usb
Clapital shvance 1o supplier L'SD
Capital advance 10 swpplies EUR
Capital advance 1o supplier NZD
Irade adhvance 10 suppher UsDh
Trade advance 1o supplier EUR

(b) Dervatives outstanding as at the reporting date:
Interest rate swiups
Notional amount USD FAS38.000 Murch %1, 2013 USD & NI OO0

JT.OUTSTANDING LEASE OBLIGATIONS
Finance lease obligations

wirrency (FOY)

March 51, 2014

Amount In

FCY

412,501
29,000

18,658
1,635,221

147,959
48,998

Hedge of foreign currency ot and hedgy
mierest ontflow on loans. Swap o pay fixes

Amount In

Rs

247.91
23.95

1.2
1,350.31

88.92
40.46

PEINANCILAL

SITATEMEN

March 31, 2013

Amount In

FCY

3,750,440
9000

28 4
1,101
7.68%

U

Amount In

Rs

3.127.65
0,26
1277
20,114
2.5
04

AREINN exposire (o visrsahie
interest and recenve o

varable interese based oo TIBOR on the tothosal ALt

Vehicles includes vebiicles obtaned oo fnance lesse. The lease terin s for three vears

Future minimum lease payments

Fotal mumamum lease Payinenty at the vear end
Lises - amvonmit reprresenning finance charges
Present value of miniomen ke Py tnents
Rawe of imterese ;9,07 -13%, pa

Lewse payments for the year

Minimum Lease Payments

Not Gater than ane year [Prosent vilue Nil s o Mol 31, 2004

Ra. 500 s on March 31, 2013

Laser than oue year bus oot later than five year [Present value Ra Nil
s o0 Maech 51, 2014 (Ra. Nil us on Manch 31, 201 ]|

Later than five years

Operating Lease

The Company has entered int) vperating leases for operating it corporme office. These lesses Have i non & anwellabie
plaoed wpon the Compuny by nlering

fenew the contrace for n further period of four vears. Thse T 1O eSOy

e escalated at the mte of 10% ooce i rwo years, over the Bie of the legse

March 31, 2014

Pl of funre mrvitrimncm boee payroents under noocuncellabile uperntng leases e cach of the following perods

Not Lnter thuars onye vissy
Lawer than one vear and not Later thatt Sve vears
Later than five yean

Lewse puyments rcogrisel in the staternent of profic and lom

JLEARNINGS PER SHARE

Muarch 31, 2014

Basic eurntings per shate are cilcalated by dividing the net peolit or loss lar thie periond antrib

For the ppose of caliulating dilured earmings per share. the net prrodit e Loss for the
averisge number of shares outstanding dharmy the peood are adjusted or the efficis af

wedilunve effects we not caonsdered fi caleulsting diluted rarmngs per share

Murch 31, 2013

2 14
0l

5.03

189

periesd ol five years with an Option

195.31
976.55
276.69

195.31

1ol

abile tor exquity sharcholders (fie
anadends and atribuabile toees) by Hie weighted average number of couity shares outstanding cluring the per

all dilutive petential « quity shares

It these lewses, The bewse poymenn

Manchi 38, 2013

19531
Winas

17200

113,095

deducting preferen

period attmbutble 1o equity darcholders wid the weighted
Povential equicy shares with




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All amnounts i i lakhs of Indian Rupees unlews otherwise suaned

Net Profit afier asation

Weighied average number of equity shases in caleulating basic EPS
Weaghred average number of equity shares in caleulating dilited EPS
Basc EPS (in Ra

Diluted EPS (in Re

39. GRATUITY

Year ended Yeur ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

B,168.57 A

107 6591 648 7 6l i
107,691 640 107 659) 44
7.509 115
7.58 115

The Company hin o defined bevelis gratuity plan, Fvery employee whe has completed five yeans or more of serviee gem a gravty on deparmare s 15 dayy

uaskary (lont e salary ) (or esch completed year of service The scheme is fanded with an frsaranes campansy in the foen of a guakifymg msarance policy fos

ermployees

Phe followleg tibiles surmmarise the components of et benefit expense rocogrmsed m the profit and low sccousr and the funded s aned amounts recognsed

b the bakance sheet for the gratuity P
Net employee henefit expense (recognied in Fersonnel Expenses

Changes m the present valoe of the defined benefit oblgoon e as follows

Present value of obligathon at the heginming of the yoar
Clutrent service cont

Imterest Con

Actuanial igain| 7 loss on obligation

Benefits paid
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

Chianges i the fair value of plan wseets are an follows:

Particulars

Fair value of planned assets at the beginning of the year
Expected retum on plan usset

Actuanal gain 7 Joss) on plan ssets

Clontrilwitions

Benelits pakd

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Year ended
March 31, 2013

Year ended

March 31, 2014

101,05 12050
76,013 fl.00
2,04 206,12

741 23.08

(19.93) $5.00

196.64 #1110

Year ended
March 31, 2013

Yeur ended

March 31, 2014

10933 $44.55
37.18 Yl
13.09 LIS

(19.93 15.88

439,67 ! LR

Year ended
March 31, 2013

Your ended

March 31, 2014

Curreny service cont 76.04 bl .00
Interest cont on benefit obligation 32.08 26.12
Expected returm on plass assets (37.18) $1.90
Net actwarial (gain) / loss recogiised b the veas 741 2428
Net benefit expense 78.34 7019
Actual returs on planted Asen 37.18 QR
Estimated comtributon to the plan i the next acconnting peniod 60,00 60,00
Details of pravision for gratuity
Particulars Yeur ended Year ended
Muarch 31, 2014 Muarch 31, 2013
Present value of abligation as ar the end of the year 196.64 W03
Las © Fuir value of plan e at the end of e year (439.67) MM
Plan (nsxet) / liability 56.97 B0
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M amounm ave i lakhs of Indian Rupees uttles otherwise stated

Mmoantu for the curretd and presdous fous periods are as Jollow

Particulars

I-Mar-13 i1-Mar-11 $-Mar-10

Detined benefit obligation

196,64 10105 20290 237.07
Plists e ts [439.67) 10939 e n 2686.1H 215,57
(SurplusVdeficit 56.97 (8.28) 17.82) (3.881 21,70
Expenence adiustmients on prliaee Halailities 741 23.28 11.64 317 W)

Eapenenee adjusuneny on plan aset

Fhe principal ssnphions used in determinmg gramry benefit obligation for the Campanys plan is shonwn below

Discount rate ‘pa
Expected return on plan issets o

Exnployes turmoser

Uhe fand m 100" admimered I ile Enmnrance Corparation of badia “LIC™ The overall expected rate of retarm an smes i dewermmined based oo the

ket prcos previiiiog on that date, appleablo o the vesr over whichs the olilissition i o be setthedd

Uhe extmmanes ol Tutsre salary incresses  rute of anteition considered i sctsarial salisation take scoonmt of inflation, seraonty, promoson aod other rofesan

locwors, such o supdy and demandd il eropdovine it sk

40, The Company s 1 centritlized tremminy fsetion whse te all the serm Joans wiel other bormowsime i addivon 1w the cash gene ruted from operitions an

r

pooied through common hank accounss 1 optinuadly tse faneds aned redice e terest cont 1o the Company Durng the year, the ( sttty hues tmedd e

vech o shiort terees Buesio Froom baedes amd athers 1o porchisse coran lived i e sgreganing 10 Ra, 7.8%0 18 March 31, 2000 - R, 1,709,481, Most of the syt

teren o with iterest acdvanuige hove been in the e of be g tolled envr long term. As the Compam generates better profits, the lone teem ~ dust term
2 i

st wall corme dosn submiantialh

L. Dunng the curremt voar, (h Clonnpuasry b aoxquisred the chaiey biseress fron Jvoths Dy Prvane Lamted] ("TOPL". Parstnsit 1o thie Buslies y Urtdls regseedd-

g the msety aoguiredd ame given below

Purchuse Cansdderation | \| 3120 60
laca

L 2014,7%
Building £54.61
Mt and rouchisery Hvk
Furniture wiel Fiotlges 0.4
(Mfice equlpesaent 0
\ehicles 52
Lol [B) ATy
Cioodwall [A] - 1Y) 1.365.00

12.SEGMENT INFORMATION
Primary segment

he Company s operations predomuisiantly relave wo munnultore and sile of milke milk products sind oo crearm and this is U only [y
reportable segiment

Geographical segment

The Commpany’s secondury s gmenit 15 the geographic divnbunon of actvinies. Revenue ad reccivaihlies are specilied by location of customes
while tie other grogmaphic infommation specificd by locanon of the assetse The folle wing Lables present revenue, « spetiditure and certal tosed

indorrration regarding the « ompany s geogrmphical segmens,




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT wmounts are in Lakbs of Indian Rupees unless atherwise staned

Revenue from operationm 22074059
Other segment information

Segrens assen

Capital expenditure:

971 52

Chthers

0977 55

2009

INR76.15

Sy

Fangible foxd amers 16,2009 95
listanggble asoets 157347
Revere from operations 196,919 40
Other segment informuation

Segment asets BO.500. 50
Capital expenditure

Tangible fived ansets wisLS7
Intangible asets W7.27

43, The Income tex ollicials carried ot a search ar the registered officr and some Guctorkes aid alsor the residence of whode ume direcsors of the Cloenpiany

249221 14
BL221.43

16,289,573

157447

216,795 70
GH.T HO00A

8.15157

157,27

ot My

PR 2010 The Compuany biss subensitted thee revquarnd detaid soughit for sl contine 10 ¢ epeerate: with the Inooww tax deparmmen:

#4.PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES

Frevious yeur fgures hive been regroped / weckasitied, whene froormary, W confaren t this vour's clisetfication.

For 5.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Acconntanty
TCAI Firm Registration No. 101049\

sd/- sd/-
ms. Bllunbrnhmmynm R.G.
wr Chutlrmun &

Membership No: 033314

Place: Chenna
Date: May 7, 2014

Managing Director

Place: Chennm
Diate: May 7. 2014

For and on belwll of the Bourd of Directors of Hatun Agro Produc Lirmated

sd/- sd/-

K.S. Thanarajan S. Chandrasekar
Joint Managing Company Seeretary
Director
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REGISTRATION DETAILS

Regstrution No | 12747 STATECODE: 18
Bakancr Sheet Date: 31.03.2014

CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR (Aot 51 R Lakh

Public Tssiye: Nil
Rights lssue: Nil
Bt Fesges Nil
Private Placemeny; Nil
POSITION OF MOBILISATION & DEP £ WMENT OF FUNDS fdmpant i Ry L

Total Liabilities: B221 43
ol Assers: 4,221 43
SOURCES OF FUNDS

Paid-up Clapital: 1,077.25
Reserves & Surplus: 636244
Nocurrent Linhilities: 27 36791
Current Liabilines: 8013583
APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Nor=current Assets: bh672.73
Current Awsers 17.548.70
PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY At in R Lakd

Turnover Including Other Income: 250,202,940
Totl Expenditire: 231,578,533
Proftit Before Tax+) (-1 +d, 1 HA0
Profit After T (41 ) +8,168.57
Earning Per Sl In Rs- 7.59
Dividend Rate%; 250

GENERIC NAMES OF THREE PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS /SERVIGES OF COMPANS
1y Dy mi nelirry e

liem Code No. (e Code OHI120.00

Prochuct Description: Milk
ltern Code No. the Coder 210500 00
Product Des Tiption fee Creams O All Virienes
For and on behall of the Board

sd/- s/~ A

R.G. CHANDRAMOGAN K.S. THANARAJAN S. CHANDRASEKAR
Place: Chennai

Date: 7 May; 2014

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT i




OFFICE NG PR s

CIN: LIS499TNI1986PLCO1 2747 FACTORIES
Salewn Plant

Registered & Attur Main Road, Karumapuram Village, Salern - 696 106, Timil Nad
Corporate Office:
Domame, Door No. 1 720A. Kanchipuram Plant
Raijiv Ganchi Salsi (OMR,, No. I+, Timmasamudam Village (White Gate), Chennau Bungalore Highway,
Karapakkam, Ranchipuram Taluk, Kanchipuram - 631 502, Tamil Nadu.
Chennal 600 097 Redhills Plant

No. 114, Angadu Rood, Nllyr Village, Redhills, Cheneai < 600 067, Tamil Nadu
Phone: 91-44-2450 122
Fius: 14424501 122 Belgavim Plant
Webwite: www liatsun.com No. 27772, Desur Village, Kanapur Road, Belgauen - 590 014, Karnamka.

E-mail: secrempal@hasun,com Honnali Plant
No. 106972, Melebennar Rosd, Kundur Villisge,
Honrali Taluk, Davangere District, Honnali - 577 219, Karnutaka
Kolasanahalli Plant
Sengan Pasavanthalave Village, Koliasanhalli Panscluyay,
Palacode Taluk, Dharmapur District -~ 636 805, Tamil Nah

Madurai Plant

No. 76728, Dindigul Madurai Muin Road, Phiravazhavayanaliur, Vadipar Tiduk.
Madurai - 625 221, Tamil Nadu

Thalaivasal Plant

V Koottu Road Pirvi, Attupanmai, Periveri Post,

Artur Toduk, Thalaivasal, Salem Diserict 636 102, Tamil Nachs

Vellisandhai Plant
Nu. H4271B&1C, Hosur Muin Road, Vellsandha, Thandukasuwhulli (PO, Pulacode.
Dharmapun 636 808, Tamil Nadu.

Salern Milk Product Plant
Attur Main Road, Rumalingapuram Village, Saler 636 107, Tamil Nadu

Karur Plant
Ayyaenpubaynm, Na871/ |, Anvakanci Thak, Kanr 639 111, Tl Newche

Hydervabad Plant

SN 32/ Pt Summen Ichaeriad Aresy, Quthballapser Mandid, Hycembod 500 065, T
Chittoor Plant

SN 821 8822 N Bk Villagr, Puthibgzsnn Mandl, Chitionor 517 127, Andhm Pracksdi




FORM

[Pursuant to Section 10X6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rale 19.5) of the Compunies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
HATSUN AGRO PRODUCT LIMITED
CIN: LI5499TN1986PLC012747
Regd.Office: Domaine, Door No. 1120A,
Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR), Karapakkam, Chennai 600 097,
Phone: 044-24501622: Fax: 044-24501422; Email: secretaripli@ hatsun.com; Web: www.hatsyn.com

29" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - 31" JULY, 2014
Name of the member(s)
Registered Address
Ernail 1d:

Folio no./DP ID no./Client 1D no.:

I7We, being the memberisjof ... sVesterrresntrarenns shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint
Name: oo S AR A BB, .o ivovaasaaas
PN o oo sasnaniianss
....... e CTTTTPPRRPPPRURTOURII.. - 7 11T SR
or failing him/her
RIS i ieinnciatiasiasiunssinnsaneseossmeenssonsmes L
e
PP SN RRPIY 111t 1< 1(1: « T CTTOD SSUPT vrn aaaseemtany Ve ENEEEASE
or fiuhing him/her

Name: ......... R RLITTTT DTS TIRNNCUSS L1 111 || S

.......... et L LT LTI POPOouen. 1 1, 111 |, SO SHeiTeNedsa




as my/aur proxy to attend and vote (on o poll) for me/us and on my/Zour behall at the 20 Annual General Meetng of the Company
to be held on Thursday, the 31 Day of July; 2004 ar 11,00 AM. IST. at P Obul Reddy Hall. Si Thyaga Brahima Gana Sabha, Vani
Mahal, G.N. Chetty Road. T Nagar, Chennai 600 017 and at any adjournment thereol in respect of such resolutions as are indicared
below:

Vote (Optional, see Note 2

Resalition Resolution : .
Nusidicr (Please mention no. of shares
For I Against | Alstain

Ordinary Husiness
¥ Adoption of Balance Sheer, Sutement of Profit and Loss, Report ol the

Board of Dircotors and Auditors for the financial year ended 31* Murch,

2001
2 Ratification and confirmation of payment of Interim Dividends on equity

shares for the fimancial year 2013-14
! Appointment of a director in place of Shri. K.S. Thanarajan, who retines

by rotation and being cligble, affers himself” for re-appointment

i Appomtment of M/s. SR. Batliboi & Associstes, LLP Chartered
Accountants, as the auditors of the Company
Special Business
3. Appomtment of Shi. Balasubramantan ‘Thenamuthan as an Independent
Director
ti Appoinmment of Shri. P Vaidyanathan as an Independent Direcror
7 Appommment of Shn. N, Chandrasekaran as an Independent Director
8. Renrement of & Director
9. Approval lor fixation of remuneration of Cost Auchitors
Signed this__ B 2014,
Nume of the Member/ Proxy Srgnusture ol the Member /Proxy
Notes:

1. This form, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the registered office of the Company, not
h&-“h—-&ehwihmﬁ

2, thbhﬁump&mﬂmhthcMmquwﬂmmm
wﬂ&ﬂhﬂbmh&em-&lhmhm




— — —

FTENIPANCE SLIP D4

AWe

HATSUN AGRO PRODUCT LIMITED
CIN: L15499TN1986PLC012747
Regd.Office: Domaine, Doar No.1/20A,
Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR), Karapakkam, Chennai 600 097,
Phone: 044-24501622; Fax: 044-24501422; Email: secretarial@hatsun.com; Web: www.hatsun,com

Registered Folio no. / DPID no. 7 Client 1D 1

Na. of shares held
I cernfy that | am 4 member / proxy for the member of the Company,

I hereby record my presence at the 20 Annual Genersd Meeting of the Company at P Obul Reddy Hall, Sri Thyaga Brahma Gana
Sabha, Visni Mahal, GN. Cherty Road, T Nagar. Chennai BOO 017 on Thursday, the 31% Day of July, 2014 a0 11,00 AM. IST

Name of the Member/Proxy Signature of the Member/ Proxy

Note:

Mﬂw&M%MhﬂhmuhmﬁhmMMmmem
their copies of the Annual Report to the AGM.










" HATSUN AGRO PRODUCT LTD )

CIN: LIS199TN1986PLOO12747
Domaine, Door No: 1720A, Rajiv Gandhi Sala (OMR), Karapakkam, Chennat - 600 09% Tndia
P: 044-24501622; F:044-24501422; Email: socretarial@ hatsumcon: Web: www.hatsun.com
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